
 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a 

Chymunedau 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Y Senedd 

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 19 Ebrill 2018 

Amser: 09.00

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Naomi Stocks 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddCymunedau@cynulliad.cymru
------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod (09.00 - 09.15) 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

   

2 Ymchwiliad i feichiogrwydd, mamolaeth a gwaith yng Nghymru - 

sesiwn dystiolaeth 1 

(09.15 - 10.15) (Tudalennau 1 - 35)  

Dr Alison Parken, Aelod o Bwyllgor Cymru, Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau 

Dynol  

Rosalind Bragg, Cyfarwyddwr, Maternity Action 

Egwyl (10.15 – 10.30) 

3 Ymchwiliad i feichiogrwydd, mamolaeth a gwaith yng Nghymru - 

sesiwn dystiolaeth 2 

(10.30 - 11.30) (Tudalennau 36 - 47)  

Cerys Furlong, Prif Weithredwr, Chwarae Teg 

Catherine Fookes, Cyfarwyddwr, Rhwydwaith Cydraddoldeb Menywod Cymru 

4 Ymchwiliad i feichiogrwydd, mamolaeth a gwaith yng Nghymru - 

sesiwn dystiolaeth 3 

(11.30 - 12.30) (Tudalennau 48 - 57)  

Emma Webster, Cyd Prif Swyddog Gweithredol ac Uwch Gyfreithiwr, Your 

Employment Settlement Service 

James Moss, Partner, Slate Legal 

Bethan Darwin, Partner, Thompson Darwin Law 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



5 Papurau i'w nodi 

 (Tudalen 58)  

5.1 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg at Ysgrifennydd 

y Cabinet dros Addysg ynghylch cyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 

2018-19. 

 (Tudalennau 59 - 65)  

5.2 Llythyr at y Prif Weinidog mewn perthynas â hawliau dynol yng Nghymru 

 (Tudalennau 66 - 75)  

5.3 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol, Senedd yr 

Alban, mewn perthynas â hawliau dynol yng Nghymru 

 (Tudalennau 76 - 77)  

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 (vi) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod 

   

7 Ymchwiliad i feichiogrwydd, mamolaeth a gwaith yng Nghymru - 

trafod y dystiolaeth a gafwyd o dan eitemau 2, 3 a 4 

(12.30 - 12.45)   

8 Trafod llythyr mewn perthynas ag adnoddau ar gyfer craffu ar 

Brexit 

(12.45 - 12.55) (Tudalennau 78 - 80)  

Bydd y Pwyllgor yn cynnal sesiwn friffio breifat cyn cyhoeddi ar gyfer yr 

adroddiad ar gysgu ar y stryd yng Nghymru 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 1/ Paper 1   

Oddi wrth: Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol 

From: Equality and Human Rights Commission  

 

 

Equality and Human Rights Commission response to the Inquiry into 
pregnancy, maternity and work in Wales 

About the Equality and Human Rights Commission 

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (the Commission) is a statutory 
body established under the Equality Act 2006.  It operates independently to 
encourage equality and diversity, eliminate unlawful discrimination, and 
protect and promote human rights.  It contributes to making and keeping 
Britain a fair society in which everyone, regardless of background, has an 
equal opportunity to fulfil their potential. The Commission enforces equality 
legislation on age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. It encourages compliance with the Human Rights Act 1998 and is 
accredited by the UN as an ‘A status’ National Human Rights Institution. Find 
out more about the Commission’s work at:www.equalityhumanrights.com. 

Introduction 

The Commission welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Committee’s 
Inquiry into pregnancy, maternity and work in Wales.  

Pregnancy and maternity is a protected characteristic under the Equality Act 
2010. The legislation prohibits discrimination because of pregnancy and 
maternity, including treating a woman less favourably because she is 
breastfeeding. Instances of unlawful discrimination could include a female 
employee being dismissed or made redundant; refused promotion; denied the 
right to return to the same job; or having some of her responsibilities taken 
away because of her pregnancy or maternity leave. It could be sex 
discrimination if a woman is treated less favourably because she is 
breastfeeding or if she is harassed because she is pregnant, on maternity 
leave or because of her return from maternity leave.  

In addition, Regulation 10 of the Maternity and Parental Leave Regulations 
1999 requires that when a woman faces redundancy during her maternity 
leave, if there is a suitable alternative job it must be offered to her.   
 
There has been a series of family-friendly legislation over the past decade 
which has had an impact on workplace management of pregnancy and 
maternity.  
 
There had been a lack of up-to-date evidence on employers’ experiences of, 
and attitudes towards, managing pregnancy and maternity. As a result of this, 
in 2016 the Commission published research in partnership with the 

Tudalen y pecyn 21

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/


2 
 

 

Department for Business, Innovation and Skills entitled ‘Pregnancy and 
maternity related discrimination and disadvantage.’ It explored the nature and 
prevalence of pregnancy and maternity related discrimination in the 
workplace. In addition, it examined employers’ attitudes, approaches and 
challenges in managing pregnancy and maternity in the workplace.  

Commission research findings 

The research results were based on survey interviews with over 3,000 
mothers and 3,000 employers. It also included over 100 face to face 
interviews, in addition to employers and employee focus groups. A tri-nation 
approach was taken with oversampling to Scotland and Wales so we are able 
to focus on Wales specific statistics.  
 
Despite 87% of employers in Wales feeling it is in the best interests of 
organisations to support pregnant women and those on maternity leave, we 
found that: 

 71% of mothers reported negative or discriminatory experiences 

 46% of mothers reported a negative impact on their career (including 
opportunity, status and job security) 

 36% of mothers would have liked flexible working arrangements but 
were fearful to be viewed negatively 

 A higher proportion of establishments in Wales (10%) offered no flexible 
working practices.  

 

Mothers who work in the public sector were less likely to have felt forced to 
leave their jobs, report financial loss or report a negative experience related 
to a flexible working request.  

In addition, the findings can be broken down to look at the size of the 
employer. We found: 

 Small employers (under 50 staff) were more likely to feel that during 
recruitment women should declare upfront if they are pregnant. 

 Medium-sized employers (50 -249 employers) were more likely to feel it 
is in the best interests of their organisation to support pregnant women 
and those on maternity leave.   

 Large employers (over 250 staff) were more likely to state that all 
statutory rights were reasonable and easy to facilitate.  

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 22

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/managing-pregnancy-and-maternity-workplace/pregnancy-and-maternity-discrimination-research-findings
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/managing-pregnancy-and-maternity-workplace/pregnancy-and-maternity-discrimination-research-findings


3 
 

 

 

 

Our research report recommendations  

In response to the research, the Commission recommended six areas for 
action: leadership for change, improving employer practice, improving access 
to information and advice, improving health and safety management in the 
workplace, improving access to justice, and monitoring progress.  

Specific recommendations for Welsh Government were to: 

 work in partnership with the Commission and business leaders to: 
 

o develop a joint communications campaign aimed at employers, 
underlining the economic benefits of unlocking and retaining the 
talent and experience of pregnant women and new mothers, and 

o demonstrate creative approaches to attracting, developing and 
retaining women in the workforce before, during and after 
pregnancy. 
 

 work in partnership with the Commission to identify effective 
interventions that enable employers to manage and make best use of 
the talent and experience of pregnant women and new mothers and to 
ensure that employers are aware of and comply with their legal 
obligations.  
 

 take action to include relevant questions about pregnancy and 
maternity discrimination and disadvantage in planned surveys of 
employers and mothers, report on the outcomes and keep under 
consideration what further research or action may be needed to 
address enduring areas of discrimination and disadvantage. 

 

Welsh Government Response 

The Commission welcomed the Cabinet Secretary for Communities and 
Children writing to all Cabinet Secretaries to share our research and 
recommendations.  Within this letter, the Cabinet Secretary asked for detail 
on the specific actions Cabinet Secretaries had taken, or intended to take, in 
relation to addressing pregnancy and maternity discrimination highlighted in 
our research.  

Following this, we were informed of the actions identified by all Divisions 
within Welsh Government. These included: 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



4 
 

 

 The Cabinet Secretary for Education asking officials to write to all Local 
Authority Education Directors, HR leads and Local Authority Governors’ 
Support Officers to highlight our report and research findings and 
requiring them to cascade the information to schools in their area. 

 The Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government requesting 
officials to write to all twenty-two local authorities to highlight the 
support and information available.  

 The Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure asking officials 
to circulate our report to their social partners. 

 The Cabinet Secretary for Health, Wellbeing and Sport and Minister for 
Social Services and Public Health sharing our report with Workforce 
and OD Directors in NHS Wales and to Directors of Social Services in 
local authorities in Wales.  

The Committee should consider how the actions have been taken 
forward across Welsh Government Departments since the Cabinet 
Secretary’s letter of April 2017.  

Working Forward 

To take forward the recommendations, the Commission launched a national 
campaign, led by British business, that aims to make workplaces the best 
they can be for pregnant women and new parents. 
 
We brought together a coalition of businesses, leading the way on pregnancy 
and maternity rights for employees, who will share their advice, knowledge, 
and expertise with their peers. 
 
Founding partners are: Barclays Bank, BT Group, Ford Motor Company, John 
Lewis Partnership, Mitie, Nationwide building Society, Royal Mail, Transport 
for London. 
 
Supporters are: Charted Management Institution, CBI, CIPD,FSB, IoD, South 
West Contact Centre Forum, Welsh Contact Centre Forum. 
 
We are now asking employers that want to improve their practice to pledge to 
make their workplace the best it can be for pregnant and new mothers, by: 
1. Demonstrating leadership from the top down 
2. Ensuring confident employees  
3. Training and supporting line managers 
4. Offering flexible working practices 
 
We are encouraging organisations to pledge support to Working Forward and  

Tudalen y pecyn 24



5 
 

 

take action on these four area. Our aim is to drive long term attitudinal and 
behavioral change to improve the experience for both the employer and 
employee.   
 
We welcome the Welsh Government’s signing of the Working Forward 
Pledge.  
 
The Committee should consider what further action the Welsh 
Government can take under each of the pledge areas to improve the 
experiences for pregnant women and new parents. Also, how can this 
be shared to promote action from other employers in Wales?  
 

Good practice examples 

Welsh organisations who have signed the Working Forward Pledge include: 
 

 Action for children 

 Adult Learning Wales 

 AVOW 

 Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

 Bron Afon Community Housing 

 BT 

 Cardiff Business School 

 Carmarthenshire County Council 

 Careers Wales 

 Coleg y Cymoedd 

 Deloitte 

 Dwr Cymru 

 Family Housing Association Wales 

 Ford 

 Gower College Swansea 

 Legal & General 

 Mid & West Wales Fire & Rescue Service 

 NPTC Group of Colleges 

 Public Health Wales 

 QLS 

 South Wales Police / Police & Crime Commissioner 

 Torfaen County Borough Council 
 

A key theme of Working Forward is peer- to-peer learning. We are helping 
organisations to get together to share ideas and experiences about how to 
make workplaces better for pregnant women and new parents. 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



6 
 

 

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board are developing a pregnancy and 
maternity toolkit to support line managers in having regular and open 
conversations with team members during their pregnancy, maternity leave 
and return to work.  

South Wales Police have introduced ‘pregnancy champions’ to support 
pregnant staff and for the first few months of returning to work as a new 
parent. South Wales Police and the Commissioner ensure all of this work is 
fed into their Internal Delivery Plan to increase the numbers of women at all 
ranks in their service. 

BT in collaboration with their women’s network have developed a maternity 
handbook to support line managers. It includes practical advice and top tips. 
It is complemented by an employee handbook.  

Further examples of best practice can be found on our website.  

The Committee should consider how to encourage all employers in 
Wales, including anchor companies, to take action on pregnancy and 
maternity discrimination and sign up to the Working Forward pledge. 

 

Power to the bump 

In response to the research, the EHRC launched an online campaign ‘Power 
to the Bump’ to empower young expectant and new mothers to know their 
rights at work and to raise their confidence to assert these rights. This 
included supporting women to have early conversations with employers and 
therefore early resolution to avoidable pregnancy and maternity issues. 
 
The five top tips are: 
 Tip 1: Talk to your boss  
 Tip 2: Go to your antenatal appointments 
 Tip 3: Plan your maternity leave 
 Tip 4: Talk about risks 
 Tip 5: Avoid stress 

 

The Committee should consider what further steps can be taken to raise 
awareness of the workplace rights women and mothers have when they 
are pregnant and return to work. 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 26

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/working-forward/taking-action-support-pregnancy-and-parenthood-your-stories
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/power-bump
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/power-bump
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/power-bump/power-bump-top-5-tips#h1
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/power-bump/power-bump-top-5-tips#h2
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/power-bump/power-bump-top-5-tips#h3
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/power-bump/power-bump-top-5-tips#h4
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/power-bump/power-bump-top-5-tips#h5


7 
 

 

 

Welsh Government’s equality objectives and economic action plan 

We welcomed the Welsh Government’s Public Sector Equality Duty Objective 
2016-2020 to identify and reduce the causes of employment, skills and pay 
inequalities related to gender, age and disability. Actions identified included 
the production of a Welsh Government wide employability plan to underpin 
future approaches to delivery aimed at assisting young people and adults to 
gain, retrain and progress with employment.  

‘Prosperity for all: economic action plan’ sets out a vision for the Welsh 
economy. The action plan commits to introducing economic contracts which 
will set the relationship between business and government to stimulate 
growth, increase productivity and make Wales fairer and more competitive. 
The contract requires businesses to demonstrate commitment to fair 
conditions before proposals will be considered in funding. One of these key 
themes is ‘Fair Work’.  

The Prosperity for all: economic action plan highlights work to support four 
foundation sectors – tourism, food, retail and care - in a joined up and 
consistent way across Government.  

Out research found concerning attitudes towards pregnancy and maternity 
from some of these foundation sectors. For example, 

 Hotel and restaurants – employers were more likely than average to 
think women should declare at recruitment stage if they are pregnant. 

 Caring, leisure and other service occupations – twice as many mothers 
than average felt under pressure to hand in their notice when they 
announced their pregnancy. 
 

The Committee should consider how the Public Sector Equality Duty, 
the Welsh Government’s Economic Action Plan and its new 
Employability Plan can be used as levers to tackle gender inequality in 
Welsh workplaces.  

The Committee should recommend that the Welsh Government’s Fair 
Work Board considers our research and findings and that it provides 
support for businesses in agreeing a clear definition of fair work to 
ensure that female talent is valued and nurtured.  

The Committee should consider how the Welsh Government is working 
with the four foundation sectors to address the attitudes and 
experiences of women working in these sectors, to ensure 
opportunities for growth and innovation.  

Tudalen y pecyn 27



8 
 

 

 

Summary of recommendations  

 The Committee should consider how the actions have been taken 
forward across Welsh Government Departments since the Cabinet 
Secretary’s letter of April 2017.  

 The Committee should consider what action the Welsh Government can 
take under each of the pledge areas to improve the experiences for 
pregnant women and new parents. Also, how can this be shared to 
promote action from other employers in Wales?  

 The Committee should consider what further steps can be taken to 
raise awareness of the workplace rights women and mothers have 
when they are pregnant and return to work. 

 The Committee should consider how the Public Sector Equality Duty, 
the Welsh Government’s Economic Action Plan and its new 
Employability Plan can be used as levers to tackle gender inequality in 
Welsh workplaces.  

 The Committee should recommend that the Welsh Government’s Fair 
Work Board considers our research and findings and that it provides 
support for businesses in agreeing a clear definition of fair work to 
ensure that female talent is valued and nurtured.  

 The Committee should consider how the Welsh Government is working 
with the four foundation sectors to address the attitudes and 
experiences of women working in these sectors, to ensure opportunities 
for growth and innovation.  

Tudalen y pecyn 28



ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 2/ Paper 2   

Oddi wrth: Maternity Action  

From: Maternity Action  
 

1. About Maternity Action 

Maternity Action is the leading national charity working to protect and 

strengthen maternity rights and to promote the health and wellbeing of 

pregnant women, new mothers and their families.  Maternity Action provides 

online information and telephone advice to pregnant women and new 

parents on maternity rights at work, maternity benefits, and entitlement to 

health and other services for women from abroad.  Maternity Action 

convenes the Alliance for Maternity Rights, a network of parenting groups, 

advice agencies, unions and health organisations working to bring an end to 

pregnancy and maternity discrimination in the workplace.  

2. Nature and incidence of pregnancy and maternity discrimination in the 

workplace 

Equality and Human Rights Commission research into pregnancy and 

maternity-related discrimination found that this form of discrimination was 

widespread and affected women working in the public and private sector, in 

all industries and in large, medium and small businesses.  Key statistics from 

the 2016 research, Pregnancy and maternity-related discrimination and 

disadvantage: Experiences of Mothers (EHRC/BIS 2016), are: 

 More than three-quarters (77%) of all pregnant women and new 

mothers in the workplace experience some form of pregnancy or 

maternity-related discrimination. 

 One in every nine (11%) pregnant women and new mothers in the 

workplace are unfairly dismissed, unfairly made redundant or forced to 

leave their jobs because of discrimination. 

 The incidence of maternity discrimination has increased significantly 

over the past decade.  The EHRC research found that a total of 54,000 

women each year lose their job as a result of pregnancy and maternity 

discrimination.  This is 80% higher than comparable research 

undertaken ten years earlier by the Equal Opportunities Commission. 

 One in every twenty-five (4%) women leave their jobs because of 

concerns about health and safety. Almost half of all women (48%) 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



report that their employer did not initiate a discussion about health 

and safety or that not all health and safety risks were tackled. 

 Just over one in every ten women (11%) reported negative changes to 

their job on return to work. 

 More than half (51%) of women who had their flexible working request 

approved reported negative consequences.  Roughly one in every four 

women (38%) did not request the type of flexible working they wanted 

because they did not think it would be approved or they were worried 

about negative consequences. 

 One in five women (19%) who stopped breastfeeding said that 

returning to work influenced their decision.  Over half of these women 

(54%) would like to have breastfed longer (equating to 6% of all new 

mothers in the workplace). 

 Four in ten women (41%) experienced some risk to or impact on their 

health and welfare.  The incidence was higher amongst women on 

agency, casual or zero hours contracts (50%) and lowest amongst 

those earning more than £40,000 p.a. (35%). 

 Only 28% of women who reported negative and possibly discriminatory 

experiences raise this with their employer.  Only 3% pursue a grievance 

and fewer than 1% make a claim to the employment tribunal. 

Pregnancy and maternity discrimination poses significant costs to women, 

the state and employers as documented in the EHRC research, Estimating the 

financial cost of pregnancy and maternity related discrimination and 

disadvantage (EHRC 2016).   The cost to women of losing their jobs due to 

pregnancy and maternity discrimination is between £46.6 million and £113 

million in the first twelve months alone.  The cost to the state due to lost tax 

revenue and increased benefits payments is between £28.9 million and 

£34.2 million in the first twelve months.  The cost to employers was £278.8 

million per year. 

By contrast, discrimination which falls short of women losing their job 

results in costs to women and the state but net savings to employers of 

between £7.1 million and £8 million in the twelve months following the 

event. Examples of savings include employers refusing to pay for time off for 

antenatal appointments and for holiday entitlements. 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



3. Women’s experiences 

Maternity Action’s Maternity Rights Advice Line provides free telephone 

advice on maternity rights at work and maternity benefits to approximately 

2,000 parents each year. Advice is delivered by lawyers and trained advisers.  

Callers are from across the UK, with 3% located in Wales.  Three quarters 

(75%) earn below £30,000. 

The most common topics raised by callers are: Statutory Maternity Pay, 

discrimination, Maternity Allowance, rights during maternity leave, 

redundancy, return to work, right to request flexible working, Tax Credits, 

maternity leave, health and safety, contractual maternity pay, resigning 

during maternity leave and sickness during pregnancy. 

Examples of some recent calls: 

 A pregnant woman employed in a hairdressing salon had experienced 

difficulties with her employer when she needed time off for sickness.  

She was then told that she would be made redundant.  She felt that 

this was not a genuine redundancy as she was the only one being 

made redundant and there had been no change in demand for the 

service.  The timing of the redundancy meant that she was not entitled 

to Statutory Maternity Pay.  We advised her on how to challenge the 

decision and how to claim Maternity Allowance. 

 A woman returning from maternity leave had her flexible working 

request refused.  Her employer offered her either a more junior role on 

a part time basis or redundancy.  She discovered that her employer 

had decided to keep her maternity cover on.  We advised that this was 

not a genuine redundancy as her role was still available and that she 

could make a claim for discrimination. 

 A woman working in a health centre was told that the time she had 

taken off for antenatal appointments would not be paid as she had not 

formally notified the employer of her pregnancy before taking leave.  

She had records of notifying the relevant manager however these were 

rejected by the head of the centre.  We advised her on raising a 

grievance and, if this did not resolve the issue, pursuing a claim for 

discrimination. 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



Maternity Action is currently piloting a casework service for women 

experiencing pregnancy and maternity discrimination at work, in partnership 

with YESS law.  The pilot, funded by the Equality and Human Rights 

Commission, consists of casework support up until litigation and provision 

of a peer supporter.  The project aims to address the very low numbers of 

pregnant women and new mothers who take action to assert their rights 

(28% speak to their employers, 3% pursue a grievance and fewer than 1% 

make an employment tribunal claim). Preliminary findings are that this 

combination of support significantly increases the likelihood of women 

exercising their rights. 

An example of a recent case for which we provided casework support: 

 A woman had been extremely unwell during her pregnancy, requiring 

weekly visits to her doctor.  She complied with the absence procedures 

and provided doctors certificates. Her employer called her in for a 

meeting to discuss disciplinary action for her absences. 

Maternity Action’s advice service is substantially oversubscribed.  As the only 

specialist maternity rights advice service in the charity sector, the demand 

for advice has increased each year in response to the increasing incidence of 

maternity discrimination and cuts to other advice services, such as local 

Citizens Advice Bureaux and Law Centres.  We are able to assist 

approximately one in five women who call the advice service, as we have 

been unable to secure funding to expand the service to meet need.  We are 

concerned that the consequence of inadequate funding for this service is 

that women are not obtaining much-needed advice on their rights. 

4. Welsh Government action to address pregnancy and maternity-related 

discrimination 

In 2016, Maternity Action and the Alliance for Maternity Rights released an 

Action Plan: Putting an end to pregnancy discrimination in the workplace 

which included a detailed set of recommendations for Government action.  

The Action Plan influenced the UK Women and Equalities Select Committee’s 

inquiry into pregnancy and maternity-related discrimination.   

Tudalen y pecyn 32



The responsibility for addressing pregnancy and maternity-related 

discrimination in Wales is shared between the UK Government and the 

National Assembly of Wales, with many of the levers to address this issue 

lying with Westminster.  The UK Government has yet to take substantive 

action to address pregnancy and maternity-related discrimination.  The key 

Government commitment in response to the Women and Equalities Select 

Committee report was to review redundancy protections for pregnant women 

and new mothers.  This commitment was given in January 2017 and the 

Government has yet to provide a commencement date for the review.  While 

the Taylor Review of Modern Workplace Practices was specifically tasked with 

investigating maternity and parental rights, it merely repeated the 

commitment to review redundancy protections. 

Levers available to the Welsh Government to take action on pregnancy and 

maternity discrimination include the Fair Work Board, the Code of Practice 

for Ethical Employment in Supply Chains, the Sustainable Development 

Charter and policies and practices in devolved public services.  The Welsh 

Government can also fund specific programmes, such as the new childcare 

offer. 

Maternity Action is keen to see the Welsh Government invest in strategies 

both to reduce the incidence of pregnancy and maternity discrimination and 

to support women who have experienced unfair and unlawful treatment.  We 

make the following recommendations. 

(i) Demonstrating leadership in addressing high rates of pregnancy 

and maternity discrimination 

There is an urgent need for Governments to show leadership in 

spearheading a change in culture.  The Welsh Government should bring 

together employers, unions and voluntary organisations to run a campaign 

to communicate: 

 The benefits to the wider community in addressing pregnancy and 

maternity-related discrimination and supporting women’s 

participartion in the workforce during their childbearing years, 

including promoting the health and wellbeing of women and their 

babies, protecting family incomes and reducing child poverty; 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



 The business case for attracting and retaining women of childbearing 

age especially in relation to small- and medium-sized enterprises; 

 The legal framework for pregnancy and maternity issues; 

 The penalties for failing to comply. 

 

(ii) Public reporting of maternity retention rates 

Public reporting of maternity retention rates will focus attention on employer 

practices towards pregnant women and new mothers, much as Gender Pay 

Gap reporting has shone a spotlight on pay inequality.  Maternity retention 

rates are the proportion of women who were pregnant while working for the 

company and are still in post a year after return from maternity leave.  The 

Welsh Government should explore ways to incorporate maternity retention 

rate reporting into the work of the Fair Work Board, the Code of Practice for 

Ethical Employment in Supply Chains, the Sustainable Development Charter 

and policies and practices in devolved public services. 

(iii) Health and safety and breastfeeding 

Health and safety protections are an area of particularly poor employer 

practice warranting attention from the Welsh Government.  There is scope 

for significant gains to be made by supporting employers to undertake 

better general risk assessments and individual risk assessments, by training 

midwives and other health workers about health and safety rights at work, 

by developing good practice guides for specific industry sectors and by 

supporting good practice in breastfeeding on return to work. 

(iv) Advice services for women and their families 

Currently, few women who experience discrimination exercise their rights 

and advice services to support them are under enormous financial pressure.  

The Welsh Government should consider providing an injection of funding 

into women’s charities providing specialist information and advice services 

that pregnant women and new mothers need to protect their rights and 

entitlements. 

(v) Information for employers 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



Employers are more likely to comply with the law if the information on their 

legal obligations is readily accessible.  The Welsh Government should 

explore options for delivering consolidated information on employers’ 

responsibilities to pregnant women and new parents. 

 

  April 2018 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 3/ Paper 3   

Oddi wrth: Chwarae Teg  

From: Chwarae Teg 
 
  

 

 

 

Introduction 

Chwarae Teg exists to deliver our vision of a fairer Wales where women achieve and prosper. We 

work with women, businesses, influencers and decision makers to build a society that values, 

supports and benefits women and men equally. 

 

Despite equality legislation being in place for a number of years, women continue to face pregnancy 

and maternity discrimination and having children still shapes the career and life choices of women 

to a far greater extent than men.  

 

Ultimately this remains an issue for women due to persistent stereotypical ideas about men and 

women’s role in society. The assumption that women will take on the primary caring role in a 

household is the foundation of continued discrimination and disadvantage that women face once 

they have children.  

 

Key messages  

 

1. While legislation and regulation are important to protect women from pregnancy and 

maternity discrimination, sustainable change will only be achieved if we are able to shift 

culture and attitudes so that care is no longer seen as a women’s issue and our workplace 

structures enable parents to effectively balance work and care.  

2. The Welsh Government have limited powers to directly address instances of discrimination 

in the private sector but can take action to deal with the underlying factors that make this 

such an acute issue for women. This includes tackling stereotypes, improving childcare, 

supporting women returners, supporting the development of inclusive and flexible 

workplaces and driving culture change. 

3. The new childcare offer, Economic Action Plan and Employability Plan all have the potential 

to support women, particularly those with children, if implemented well. Close monitoring of 

these policies will be crucial and the inclusion of gender specific evaluation criteria could 

further ensure that the aims and objectives of the policies track through to delivery.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Detailed Response 

Tudalen y pecyn 36

Eitem 3



 

2 
 

Section One: How the Welsh Government is taking action on the findings of the EHRC review 

into pregnancy discrimination (Question One) 

 

1. The 2016 EHRC report on pregnancy and maternity discrimination is the most comprehensive 

investigation of this topic for some time.1 The findings highlight a number areas that might be 

prioritised for action in Wales: 

1.1. It would be worthwhile investigating why Wales and Scotland have a lower proportion of 

women reporting negative experiences than England, although at 77% there remains a 

need for action in Wales. It’s possible that the existence of additional equality duties in 

Wales and Scotland have supported greater awareness of legal requirements and lessons 

could be taken from this approach to improve the performance among the private sector.  

1.2. Wales’ performance lagged behind the UK in two key areas.  A higher proportion of 

employers in Wales reported that it was difficult to facilitate the statutory right to protect 

employees from being treated unfavourably because they are pregnant or on maternity 

leave and Wales also had the highest proportion of establishments that offer no flexible 

working at 10% (England 4%; Scotland 3%). These should be prioritised by government 

and other actors in Wales.  

1.3. While 84% of employers say that it is in their interest to support those on maternity leave, 

77% of mothers report bad experiences. Furthermore 70% of employers think that women 

should declare upfront whether they are pregnant and a quarter think it’s acceptable to ask 

women about their plan to have children at recruitment. This disconnect could suggest a 

lack of awareness or understanding of what supporting those on maternity looks like, which 

could be addressed in part by provision of further resources and training for employers.  

1.4. Some sectors and occupations performed particularly poorly with women more likely to 

report poor experiences and employers more likely to display negative experiences. 

Perhaps unsurprisingly the sectors that perform worst are those that are known to have a 

lack of women in the workforce. This is likely to be both a cause and consequence of the 

under-representation of women. These sectors should be prioritised for action.  

1.5. The private sector consistently performs worse than the public and third sector in terms of 

employer attitude, with 74% of private sector employers stating that women should declare 

upfront if pregnant compared to 58% in the third sector and 45% in the public. It is worth 

noting however that there was no significant difference in the proportion of women reporting 

negative experiences across the public and private sector.  

 

2. Legislation alone will not deliver the sustainable change we need. Not all of the experiences 

described in the EHRC research fall under the legal definition of discrimination and for those 

accessing their legal right to work flexibly, 51% report this resulted in negative consequences.2 

Many of the views expressed are rooted in the perception that women are carers first and 

earners second. For example, 17% of employers believed that pregnant women and mothers 

were less interested in career progression and promotion.3 While legislation is needed to ensure 

protection for pregnant women and mothers, we need to see a shift in broader attitudes and 

culture if we are to permanently address this problem 

3. This enables the Welsh Government space to take action, despite having limited powers to 

directly influence or respond to instances of discrimination in the private sector. There are three 

                                            
1 EHRC  
2 Ibid 
3 Ibid 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



 

3 
 

broad areas in which the Welsh Government could take action to address some of the broader 

factors that result in pregnancy and maternity discrimination still being so acute an issue for 

women: 

 

Recommendations to support parents  

1. Continue to closely monitor and evaluate the pilots of the new childcare offer to ensure that it 

delivers on its aims, has good coverage across Wales and support is available to those who 

need it most.  

2. Investment in care infrastructure and the workforce must be a priority to increase capacity 

and capability so there is adequate provision to support parents to work but also to address 

poor terms and conditions within in the sector, including poor support for those accessing 

maternity.  

3. Wrap-around childcare provision for children outside of the 3-4 age bracket must be 

improved. Affordability and flexibility should be the core principles that shape further 

development of childcare in Wales.  

4. Specialist support should be developed for women returners within the new Employability 

Delivery Plan, which includes support with childcare and is tailored to address the barriers 

this group face, such as a lack of confidence.  

 

Recommendations to drive culture change   

1. Ensure that the public sector leads the way in eradicating pregnancy and maternity 

discrimination and supporting women to return and progress in work following any career 

breaks. Signing up to the EHRC Working Forward pledge is a good starting point.  

2. Support and promote schemes like Agile Nation 2, Fairplay Employer, Stonewall Workplace 

Equality Index and others that support businesses to develop more inclusive workplaces.  

3. Work with business representatives to promote examples of best practice in relation to 

managing pregnancy and maternity from both the public and private sector and challenge 

negative attitudes.  

4. Encourage businesses to support women and men to work flexibly and share caring 

responsibilities by showcasing examples of best practice, including consideration of 

inclusivity in procurement and calling on the UK Government to evaluate and improve the 

current Shared Parental Leave scheme.  

 

Recommendations to tackle stereotypes  

1. Ensure that ongoing educational reforms, including curriculum reform and changes to initial 

teacher training and inspections, contribute to an educational system that effectively tackles 

gender stereotypes. 

2. Ensure that the education and careers workforce are supported to develop the skills and 

knowledge to effectively challenge stereotypical attitudes and behaviour.  

3. Build on campaigns such as “This is Me” to contribute to an ongoing public dialogue that 

challenges gender stereotypes.  

4. The recommendations from the Sex and Relationships Expert Panel, including making Sex 

and Relationships Education a statutory element of the curriculum should be taken forward.  

 

 

 

Section Two: Current Welsh Government Policies (Questions Two, Three and Four) 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



 

4 
 

4. Strategic Equality Plan  

4.1. The gender pay gap for all workers in Wales currently stands at around 15% but there is 

significant variation across different parts of Wales and different sectors with a pay gap of 

around 30% in some areas.4 While the pay gap has been reducing, the pace at which this is 

happening has slowed. There remains a need for targeted activity to address the causes of 

the pay gap.  

4.2. The recent Annual Report on Equality from the Welsh Government summarises some of the 

activity being undertaken to deliver Objective Three – to identify and reduce the causes of 

employment, skills and pay inequalities related to gender - including ongoing work to 

consult on the details of the new childcare offer.5 The decision to tailor this policy to benefit 

women who wish to return to work and families on low incomes should be particularly 

helpful in relation to pregnancy and maternity. Our views on the childcare offer are detailed 

in section four.  

4.3. Our ESF and Welsh Government funded Agile Nation 2 project is working with women and 

employers specifically to address the causes of the gender pay gap, including issues faced 

by mothers. Our work with employers is particularly important in relation to this topic as we 

support them to develop effective equality and diversity strategies, implement processes 

that prevent discrimination and bias in relation to recruitment and progression, implement 

flexible ways of working and drive culture change to ensure an inclusive workplace.  

 

5. Economic Action Plan 

5.1. The Economic Contract requires those receiving funds to demonstrate fair work. Depending 

on the definition of fair work this could ensure that public money only goes to employers that 

have inclusive workplaces and where pregnancy and maternity discrimination is not an 

issue. If the economic contract does not deliver the change that is desired, consideration 

could be given to adding in an additional Call to Action that specifically focuses on gender.  

5.2. The focus on care as a foundation sector could also be beneficial by addressing the lack of 

adequate care provision and tackling poor working terms and conditions, which may include 

issues around maternity based on the findings of the EHRC report.6 Investment in this 

sector must cover both the infrastructure (i.e. increase provision) and the workforce (i.e. 

improving pay, conditions and progression opportunities).  

5.3. The Action Plan includes a commitment to build capacity and capability across the childcare 

sector beyond the roll-out of the 30 free hours offer. Further development of the sector must 

be a priority and should be informed by the needs of parents. Affordability of provision will 

need to be a central focus as well as improving availability.  

5.4. The thematic and foundation sectors include a number that perform poorly in the EHRC 

report.7 This could be used as an opportunity to get to the root of the problem in these 

industries and ensure that women get fair and equal treatment within them.  

 

6. Employability Plan 

                                            
4 ONS ASHE 2017 provisional results / Welsh Government Priority Sector Statistics 2017 
5 Welsh Government Annual Report on Equality 2018  
6 Care, leisure and other services was a sector highlighted as having a particularly high proportion of women 
reporting poor experiences.  
7 Manufacturing, construction, financial services utilities and transport and communications are all highlighted 
as sectors where there is either a high proportion of women reporting bad experiences or a high proportion of 
employers expressing negative attitudes.  

Tudalen y pecyn 39



 

5 
 

6.1. The adoption of a broad definition of employability that takes account of structural and 

individual barriers as well as skills is an important foundation. Coupled with a commitment 

to ensuring an individualised approach to delivery, services should be able to flex to 

different needs, including those of mothers.  

6.2. An explicit focus on developing inclusive and flexible workplaces, a commitment to carrying 

out an equalities review of all programmes and a requirement for all delivery partners to 

demonstrate a commitment to equality, diversity and inclusion should all further strengthen 

delivery from a gender perspective and effectively support women into work and to progress 

in work.  

6.3. In support of actions listed in the Economic Action Plan, there is also a focus on childcare, 

which we know has the potential to be hugely beneficial. This includes delivery of the PaCE 

programme and the new childcare offer, exploring solutions for elder care and working to 

improve working conditions and progression opportunities in the care sector.  

6.4. As well as adequate childcare and ensuring availability of flexible, well-paid employment 

there may also be a need for specialist support to enable women to return to work following 

a career break, particularly support that focuses on building confidence. It may be worth 

considering developing specialist services for women returners as part of the new 

employability delivery plan.  

 

7. Childcare and support for women  

7.1. Access to childcare is crucial in supporting women into work and to progress in work. This 

has been recognised by the Welsh Government and the focus remains on rolling out the 

childcare offer of 30 free hours per week.  

7.2. We have held a number of engagement events with parents to discuss childcare in Wales. 

Broadly speaking parents welcomed plans to increase free provision in their area, with 

many mothers noting that they would return to work without question if this were available to 

them. This provision needs to be flexible and there was some concern about how to ensure 

support went to those who need it most.  

7.3. There are concerns about the lack of adequate wrap-around childcare with many making 

use of after school clubs in place of more suitable childcare. These often finish at 5pm, can 

be expensive to access and parents can face difficulty if after-school provision for children is 

in different locations.  

7.4. Pilots of the new childcare offer should be closely monitored to ensure good coverage 

across Wales can be delivered, that services are accessible to those who need them most 

and offers opportunities to build to ensure an increase in wider provision of children of all 

ages. To be clear, it’s our view that ‘those who need it most’ should be parents for whom 

access to affordable and flexible childcare is the primary barrier preventing them returning 

to meaningful work. If the pilots and the new childcare offer does not meet the needs of 

parents needing to return to work in Wales then Welsh Government should consider 

amending the policy within this Assembly term. 

 

8. These policies all have great potential, but implementation is key. Delivery must remain 

sensitive to gender impacts and agile enough to respond where improvements might be 

required. One way to ensure delivery maintains this focus is to include gender explicitly in 

evaluation indicators. This might include using gender disaggregated data from service 

delivery as well as broader national indicators including the gender pay gap, economic 

activity and inactivity rates, average hours worked and average time spend on unpaid work 

in the home, to assess impact on change at scale.  

Tudalen y pecyn 40



ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 4/ Paper 4   

Oddi wrth: WEN 

From: WEN 

 

 
WEN Wales is a representative women’s network1 and human rights organisation working to 
influence policy-making and empower women to achieve equal status in corporate and civil 
life. Our charitable objects are to promote equality and human rights with specific reference to 
women and gender equality in Wales.  
 
Pregnancy, Maternity & Work in Wales: 

1. The Equality and Human Rights Commissions’ 2017 inquiry into pregnancy and maternity 
discrimination research findings highlights some real concerns in Wales with regards to how 
women feel that they are being treated and the attitudinal barriers they face from employers.2 
Of the mothers who were consulted by the EHRC in Wales:3 

 71% reported negative or possibly discriminatory experiences 

 10% felt forced to leave their jobs 

 15% reported financial loss 

 46% reported a negative impact on opportunity, status or job security 

2. Coupled with the findings when the EHRC consulted with employers in Wales, there are 
clearly worrying and contradictory attitudes that require attention. Of employers surveyed and 
interviewed:4 

 87% feel it is in the best interest of the organisation to support pregnant 
women and those on maternity leave 

 65% feel women should declare upfront at recruitment if they are pregnant 

 36% said all statutory rights are reasonable 

 26% said all statutory rights are easy to facilitate 

 23% said pregnancy puts an unreasonable cost burden on the workforce 

3. These snapshots indicate that despite the legislation in place to protect the rights of 
pregnant women and women on maternity leave there are feelings amongst the majority of 
Welsh employers interviewed that pregnancy and maternity leave: is unreasonably costly; it 
is difficult to facilitate all statutory rights; and that statutory rights go beyond what is 
reasonable. It is worrying then that 65% of employers would have women declare pregnancy 
during recruitment, and presumably through conscious or unconscious bias, these women 

                                                
1 Over 1000 individual members and organisational members, including women’s rights and 

allied organisations from across the third sector, academia, international and national NGOs. 
2 https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/file/10521/download?token=WqAvNfz5.  
3 Ibid. 
4 Ibid. 

Tudalen y pecyn 41

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/file/10521/download?token=WqAvNfz5


 

 

would reap the consequences of the unpopular levels of protection that pregnant women and 
those on maternity are covered by, in the eyes of the law. 

4. Despite this protection afforded by the Equalities Act (2010), discrimination occurs 
frequently across the UK and must be examined from an intersectional perspective:5  

 Under 25 year olds were found to be more likely to say they were not willingly 
supported by employers and felt increased pressure to resign once they had 
announced their pregnancy, in comparison to older women.  

 Women from Ethnic Minorities were more likely than White British women to 
report financial loss, negative impact on opportunities, status and job 
security or have had negative experiences in relation to breastfeeding. 

 Women with long term physical or mental health conditions were more likely to 
feel forced to leave their jobs, in relation to women who did not identify long term 
physical or mental health conditions. 

 Single women were more likely to feel unsupported, more likely to report 
financial loss, negative impacts on opportunities, under pressure to resign 
and felt that employers were unhappy about them going on maternity leave, in 
comparison to women who weren’t single.   

5. The EHRC’s findings in this area highlight the complex nature of the discrimination that 
women in the UK are experiencing, not only under the protected characteristic of pregnancy 
or maternity but also other characteristics covered by the Equalities Act (2010), in addition to 
other factors such as marital status associated with societal taboos and gender stereotypes.  

6. It is then not surprising, along with gender stereotyping and social taboos, that in 2016/17 
just 250 men in Wales took shared parental leave, according to HMRC statistics, obtained by 
BBC Wales.6 This amounts to less than 1% of new fathers in Wales receiving payment for 
shared parental leave to look after their new born children, in the first full year since shared 
parental leave was introduced in 2015.  

7. Given that research suggests that the longer the period of maternity leave taken, the 
larger the impact on the gender pay gap7 – which is estimated at around 15% in Wales8 – 
new fathers may feel that they risk damaging their own careers prospects by taking shared 
parental leave. PwC’s 2018 report ‘PwC Women in Work Index Closing the gender pay gap’ 
shows that countries with more generous maternity leave periods have higher gender pay 
gaps, though the introduction of shared parental leave and encouraging men to take this up 
could change the effect of paid maternity leave on the pay gap over time.9 The additional 

                                                
5 https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/file/10521/download?token=WqAvNfz5.  
6 http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-40265334.  
7 https://www.pwc.co.uk/economic-services/WIWI/women-in-work-index-2018.pdf 
8 ONS ASHE 2017 provisional results / Welsh Government Priority Sector Statistics 2017. 
9 https://www.pwc.co.uk/economic-services/WIWI/women-in-work-index-2018.pdf  

Tudalen y pecyn 42

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/file/10521/download?token=WqAvNfz5
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-40265334
https://www.pwc.co.uk/economic-services/WIWI/women-in-work-index-2018.pdf
https://www.pwc.co.uk/economic-services/WIWI/women-in-work-index-2018.pdf


 

 

element of encouragement through incentivising men to take up shared parental leave is key 
and is missing from the current UK Government policy.  

8. At a UK Government level, there is also a clear lack of leadership as demonstrated by 
UK Minister Andrew Griffiths’ admission on BBC Radio 5, that despite launching the 
campaign ‘Share the Joy’10 to encourage take up of shared parental leave in the UK, he 
himself – an expectant father – firstly would be unable to take shared parental leave, because 
ministers were not eligible. More shocking though, was his admission that he had not even 
considered the possibility of having the rules changed so that ministers could take shared 
parental leave. Instead, he insisted that he planned to be the first minister responsible for 
parental leave to take their full two weeks of paternity leave.11  

9. With current electoral reform considerations taking place in the National Assembly 
for Wales right now, there is a clear opportunity for Assembly Members and Welsh 
Ministers to change the rules to ensure that they themselves are eligible to take shared 
parental leave and can champion equality in relation to gender equality when it comes 
to shared caring responsibilities, unlike in Westminster. WEN Wales recommends that 
the Committee calls for changes to eligibility for elected ministers in Westminster and 
the National Assembly for Wales with regards to shared parental leave. 

10. It’s worrying that so few men in Wales have taken up the offer of shared parental leave 
since the policy came in in 2015. It is worth examining the details of parental leave in 
comparison to Sweden, whose approach to shared parental leave, coupled with guaranteed, 
affordable childcare for all children over the age of 12 months encourages equal co-parenting 
and parents to have the affordable choice of returning to work.  

11. UK shared parental leave:12 

 Allows parents to share 50 weeks of leave - with 37 paid. 
 Parents can take time off separately or together for up to six months. 
 This is paid at £140.98 per week or 90% of parents’ average earnings (whichever 

is lower). 
 It must be taken between the baby’s birth and first birthday (or within a year of 

adoption). 
 It can be taken in one block or split into blocks (up to 3 blocks) with periods of 

work in between.  
 In addition to shared parental leave, fathers can take two weeks paternity leave 

and mothers must take two weeks compulsory maternity leave after the birth of 
a child. This time is not deducted from shared parental leave allowance. 

                                                
10 https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-share-the-joy-campaign-promotes-shared-

parental-leave-rights-for-parents.  
11 http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-43034292.  
12 Ibid.  

Tudalen y pecyn 43

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-share-the-joy-campaign-promotes-shared-parental-leave-rights-for-parents
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-share-the-joy-campaign-promotes-shared-parental-leave-rights-for-parents
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-43034292


 

 

12. Swedish shared parental leave:13 14 15 16  

 Parents are entitled to 480 days (around 16 months) of paid parental leave 
when a child is born or adopted. 

 This leave can be taken by the month, week, day or even hour. 

 This can be taken any time before the child’s eighth birthday. 

 On average, women take most of the days, with men taking around one-
fourth of the parental leave. 

 For 390 days, parents are entitled to nearly 80% of their pay (up to around 
£2,900 per month) with the remainder paid at a flat daily rate (approximately 
£15). 

 Those who are not employed are also entitled to paid parental leave. 

 Parents with twins or more have the right to additional paid parental leave 
(180 days extra). 

 90 days of leave are allocated specifically to each parent and cannot be 
transferred to the other (the “use it or lose it” system introduced in 1995 and 
extended in 2002).  

 In addition, one of the parents of the new born gets 10 extra days in 
connection with the birth (20 days for twins). 

 During the first 3 months of the new baby’s life, the father is entitled to be 
home for 10 days. These days are in addition to the 480 parent days. 

 A single parent is entitled to the full 480 days (with sole custody). 

 Employers do not pay the cost for parental leave, instead it is paid by the 
Swedish Social Insurance Administration. 

 To be eligible parents must be legal residents of Sweden. 

 Companies, in addition to the 480 parent leave days per child, are also 
entitled to allow parents to reduce their working hours by an additional 25%. 

 It is possible to work part-time and take parental leave the remainder of the 
time.  

 Children are guaranteed a place in childcare from the age of 12 months for 
a very modest sum, making it possible for women to return to work.  

13. In Sweden, women currently claim about 75% of parental leave, compared with 99.5% 
when it was introduced in 1974. About 80% of children in Sweden have two working parents, 
but only 40% of women work full-time compared with 75% of men, according to 2013 
statistics. Official figures from Eurostat show that 77% of women in Sweden had a job in 2014 
– the highest level in the European Union.17 

14. In Wales, there does not seem to be join-up between shared parental leave in the first 
year of an infant’s life – which according to the UK Government, allows “mothers to return to 
work sooner if they wish to” which “can contribute to [employers] closing their gender pay 

                                                
13 https://sweden.se/society/gender-equality-in-sweden/   
14 http://www.yourlivingcity.com/stockholm/work-money/maternity-paternity-leave-sweden/  
15 Ibid. 
16 https://www.theguardian.com/world/2015/may/28/swedish-fathers-paid-paternity-parental-

leave  
17 Ibid.  

Tudalen y pecyn 44

https://sweden.se/society/gender-equality-in-sweden/
http://www.yourlivingcity.com/stockholm/work-money/maternity-paternity-leave-sweden/
https://www.theguardian.com/world/2015/may/28/swedish-fathers-paid-paternity-parental-leave
https://www.theguardian.com/world/2015/may/28/swedish-fathers-paid-paternity-parental-leave


 

 

gap”18, and the unaffordability of childcare in the UK, which has one of the highest rates for 
childcare in the world.19 While the Welsh Government is proposing a policy of 30 hours per 
week for free early education and childcare for working parents, this applies only to children 
over the age of 3, which shows a clear gap between ages 1-3 which is not covered by either 
policy. This gap is even longer when, for example shared parental leave is taken by both 
parents for the first 6 months or one or both parents return to work before their child’s first 
birthday.  

15. WEN Wales would therefore recommend that childcare is offered from 6 months, 
rather than from 3 years and is not limited to those who meet the current employment 
requirements. This clearly disadvantages families and their children who do not meet 
these requirements. When such a large proportion of pregnant women feel pressured 
into resigning posts while pregnant this is highly problematic as it imposes the double 
burden of ineligibility for parental leave (whether maternity or shared parental leave) 
and childcare, which could allow women to get back into jobs. 

16. With regards to the Welsh Government 30-hour childcare scheme being piloted in some 
areas, the law that stops childminders receiving funding for looking after relatives (e.g. their 
grandchildren) must be changed, as has been highlighted by the Future Generations 
Commissioner Sophie Howe.20 Fully qualified childminders should not be disadvantaged, nor 
should parents be forced to seek additional childcare provisions with strangers. It adds an 
unnecessary and counter-intuitive burden to both childminders and working families. It is 
currently estimated that 12.5% of the 2,000 childminders registered in Wales have had issues 
caring for a relative who does not live with them, while 38% expected to provide childcare to 
a relative in the future. 

17. There is also a real societal and attitudinal issue around care work – both paid and unpaid 
in the UK generally. The UK have a high reliance on 'informal' childcare (such as relying on 
non-official care from relatives or friends). Over a third of parents - 36.9% - use this kind of 
care for children aged 3-5. In France it's 19.6% and even lower in Denmark, where it's 0.1%.21  

18. It is imperative that a ‘caring economy’ is created in Wales that does not rely on unpaid 
or underpaid, undervalued and disproportionately women-driven responsibilities of caring for 
children and vulnerable adults.  

19. Women remain the primary carers for children with 94% of UK child benefit claims paid 
to women22. In Wales, almost half of mothers say they are solely or mainly responsible for 
child care (compared with just 4% of fathers).23 The heavy reliance on women’s unpaid work 

                                                
18 https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-share-the-joy-campaign-promotes-shared-

parental-leave-rights-for-parents.  
19 http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-42966047.  
20 http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-43147701.  
21 https://www.theguardian.com/news/datablog/2012/may/21/child-care-costs-compared-

britain.  
22 Fawcett Society (n.d.) Benefits. http://www.fawcettsociety.org.uk/2013/02/benefits/ 
23 Chwarae Teg (2013) A Woman’s Place. http://chwaraeteg.com/a-womans-place/ 

Tudalen y pecyn 45

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-share-the-joy-campaign-promotes-shared-parental-leave-rights-for-parents
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-share-the-joy-campaign-promotes-shared-parental-leave-rights-for-parents
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-42966047
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-43147701
https://www.theguardian.com/news/datablog/2012/may/21/child-care-costs-compared-britain
https://www.theguardian.com/news/datablog/2012/may/21/child-care-costs-compared-britain


 

 

in this regard has a huge impact on women’s careers, ambitions and aspirations. With an 
aging population and austerity measures putting statutory services under greater strain, 
increased pressure on care givers in Wales will inevitably have detrimental effects on the 
Welsh economy and the health of the people of Wales as more and more is being expected 
of them, while the UK Government and Welsh Government provide inadequate support for 
huge sections of the population.  

 
 
WEN Wales Recommends: 

 Welsh Government to challenge attitudes of employers in Wales which 
clearly show a disconnect between understanding the importance of 
supporting employees to take maternity, paternity and shared parental leave 
– and the lived experience of women who have voiced negative or 
discriminatory treatment from employers. Also, to see the connection  
between the treatment of women taking maternity leave and the knock on 
effects that this has with regards to men’s willingness (or lack thereof) to 
take shared parental leave and their fair share of caring responsibilities.  

 Welsh Government to ensure that there is guaranteed flexible, affordable 
and subsidised childcare for all parents from the age of 6 months (rather 
than from 3 years for parents currently in employment). 

 Changes to the law so when rolled out, the Welsh Government’s 30 hours of 
free child care scheme allows registered childminders to care for their 
relatives. 

 Welsh ministers to call for changes to the current UK shared parental leave 
system available to Welsh parents, to better incentivise fathers’ uptake of 
increased parental leave and caring responsibilities for their children. The 
changes WEN Wales would like to see are: 

i. Fathers must have access to twelve weeks of non-transferable 
paternity leave at 90% of their salary 

ii.  increased flexibility of the model to better suit families 

 Require employers in Wales to carry out equality impact assessments in 
relation to the retention of staff after parental leave. 

 Committee and Assembly Members to push for eligibility for shared parental 
leave, in connection to current inquiry being conducted around Creating a 
Parliament for Wales, that includes provisions such as job-share so that 
male and female AMs can lead by example. In addition, encourage UK 
Government to do the same so that MPs are also eligible to take shared 
parental leave. 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



 

 

WEN Wales would like to thank the National Assembly for Wales’ Equality, Local 
Government & Communities Committee for the opportunity to contribute to their 

inquiry into Pregnancy, Maternity and Work in Wales. 
 

If you have any further comments or queries, please get in touch. 
 

Hilary Watson 
Policy & Communications Officer 

 
hilary@wenwales.org.uk  

Tudalen y pecyn 47

mailto:hilary@wenwales.org.uk


Background 

Over a period of 20 years we have represented 100s of women who have suffered pregnancy/maternity 

discrimination.  We stopped litigating because we knew, from experience, that it is not the solution. 

What women want is to be able to protect themselves from discrimination and if they are dismissed to 

leave with a negotiated settlement – not litigation.  At YESS, our focus is on resolving workplace 

disputes without litigation. Most recently we have been working with Maternity Action in a joint 

pilot project funded by the EHRC advising women who are being treated badly at work during 

pregnancy or maternity. 

The main points we would make from our experience are that: 

• Women suffering maternity discrimination are not able to enforce their rights in the tribunal

because they do not have the time, energy or money.  Even before fees, only 3% of those suffering

discrimination brought a claim.  Better enforcement and removal of tribunal fees, while

important, would not be the solution for women suffering discrimination.

• The key focus should be on preventative measures which stop women being dismissed or treated

unfavourably so feel they are being forced out.

Proposals from YESS 

• Prohibiting dismissal during pregnancy, maternity leave and 4 months after return

In Germany women are well protected from loss of employment due to dismissal - from the beginning of 

pregnancy until 4 months following childbirth (Schutzfrist) through a Kündigungsverbot, Dismissal Ban. 

Only in extremely rare exceptions are employers permitted to dismiss a pregnant employee during this 

time.  We recommend that this be adopted here. 

For further information about German provisions see 

http://www.howtogermany.com/pages/maternity_protection.html 

If this was adopted in the UK the exceptions could be defined, for example where the company is in severe 

financial difficulty leading to multiple redundancies or where there has been gross misconduct by the 

individual.  It is necessary to extend protection beyond the maternity leave period as employers now 

commonly put an employee at risk of redundancy on her first day back from maternity leave (or within 

the first few weeks). 

The alternative is that an employer can only dismiss the woman if they get prior authorization from a 

regulatory body, which could be ACAS. 

ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 5/ Paper 5 
Oddi wrth: YESS 
From: YESS 

Tudalen y pecyn 48

Eitem 4

http://www.howtogermany.com/pages/maternity_protection.html


At the very least, an employer should be obliged to contact ACAS before dismissing a pregnant woman or 

a woman on maternity leave, so that the employer understands their legal obligations.  But the 

consequences of failing to apply to dismiss could be that compensation is increased in cases of an adverse 

tribunal finding.  This would, at least, make the employer stop and think. 

• Regulation 10 should be expanded to the period of pregnancy  6-12 months after the end of

maternity leave

This is an alternative to (1) above.  Reg 10 provides that an employee who is made redundant during 

maternity leave, is entitled to any existing suitable alternative work in preference to other employees, 

including those at risk of redundancy. 

 Employers who understand the law now make a woman redundant after her return so that Regulation 

10 does not apply. 

• Higher rate of SMP subsidy

One way of alleviating the extra (actual or perceived) ‘burden’ on SMEs would be to increase the % 

recovery rate of SMP from 103% to 110-115% which would cover the extra training costs for a locum and 

for a maternity returner.  This could apply if the woman is still employed for a period after her return. 

• There should be an ACAS/EHRC Code of Practice setting out key issues with examples

The current EHRC Code of Practice could be expanded to cover more examples of how employers should 

treat employees.   This could be along the lines of the joint Guidance on handling redundancies when 

there are employees who are pregnant or on maternity leave.  We also drafted FAQs for the EHRC on 

pregnancy/maternity discrimination for the EHRC website.  These should be expanded to cover shared 

parental leave and disseminated more widely.  Apparently the EHRC website is not well known or visited. 

• Advice and ADR

There needs to be better access to affordable advice for both employers and employees. Disseminating 

information could be done by: 

• Providing leaflets – with a separate section for employer and employee – at advice centres, health

centres, hospitals (eg ante natal clinics);

• Videos at health centres and hospital explaining key maternity rights;

Employees need more advice about how to avoid being treated badly and what to do if they are.  At YESS, 
we coach employees how to protect themselves  (see attached leaflet) and if dismissed how to negotiate 
a better exit package.  The reality is that employees do not want to litigate, because it is expensive, 
uncertain, stressful, time-consuming and often career suicide.  Employers are also more willing to speak 
to us about possible disputes because we never litigate. However the threat of litigation does make 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



negotiations more even handed. And to be a real threat, there does need to be effective enforcement. 
Not only should ET fees be abolished, but a system of enforcement established free of charge to 
complement more accessible advice & so employees have somewhere to go which will act for them (& to 
which we can refer when negotiations do not work) 

• More flexible & paid Shared Parental Leave and a ‘take it or leave’ period for partners

The take up of SPL by fathers is very low, probably because it is not paid but also because it is still not well 

known.  There is higher take up in countries where the leave is on replacement pay and it is reserved for 

the father/partner. 

• Flexible working should be a Day 1 right

It should be Day 1 right and there should be financial incentives for SMEs who offer flexible working, 

whether part-time, remote working, compressed hours etc.   

We endorse the recommendation of the recent report on the gender pay gap by the Parliamentary 
Women and Equalities Committee that ‘[a]all jobs should be available to work flexibly unless an employer 
can demonstrate an immediate and continuing business case against doing so.’  

• Reporting

There needs to be a mechanism for recording when women leave employment while pregnancy or on 

maternity leave. Reporting mechanisms should be considered for all employers, similar to the gender pay 

gap. 

We agree with the other proposal such as extending time limits for making a claim, reduction or waiving 

of fees, proper enforcement mechanisms for awards. 

• Enforcement

Even if a woman is successful in her tribunal claim against her employer, whether she will be paid the 
monies awarded to her is uncertain. Anecdotally it is well known that many phoenix companies fail to pay 
the awards. Further, even companies which subsist often fail to pay. Although there is now a financial 
penalty payable if a company fails to pay the award the enforcement scheme is not known to many and 
is yet another legal hurdle for women to overcome at a time they can little afford it. 

Conclusions 

We suggest that research is carried out into how other countries protect women who are pregnant or on 

maternity leave, such as EU and OECD countries including Australia to ascertain whether any of measures 

which have been successful could be adopted in the UK. 

Tudalen y pecyn 50



ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 6/ Paper 6   

Oddi wrth:Slate Legal  

From: Slate Legal 

 

 

 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1. Slate Legal welcomes the opportunity to provide a written response to the call for evidence 

of the Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee of the National Assembly 

for Wales.  We are also pleased to participate in this consultation and for the opportunity to 

provide related oral evidence to the Committee. 

 

2. About Slate Legal 

 

2.1. Slate Legal1 is a specialist employment law firm based in Newport, South Wales, advising 

clients across Wales and England in the private, public and third sectors.  We are 

regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority. 

 

2.2. The firm launched in January 2016, headed by James Moss, a specialist employment 

solicitor with 20 years’ experience of advising a wide variety of employers and employees 

in the private, public and third sectors.  James has advised Welsh public sector employers 

including universities, local authorities, student unions, auditors and large drainage boards.  

He has also advised Welsh public sector employees mainly employed by the police, the 

Ministry of Defence, local authorities (mainly schools and health boards) and universities.  

James is independently recommended for employment law in the Legal 500 and 

Chambers & Partners legal directories of leading UK law firms and is also top 3 rated 

locally by Three Best Rated. 

 

2.3. Our aim is to make employment law work for our clients, whether they be employees or 

employers, advising on a wide range of employment law issues – chief of which is 

discrimination law - as well as bringing and defending employment-related claims in the 

Employment Tribunals and civil courts. 

 

2.4. We consider it important to promote values of diversity, equality and inclusion throughout 

our business which is why, within our first month of trading, we became a signatory to the 

Law Society’s Diversity & Inclusion Charter - the flagship diversity initiative of the solicitors 

profession which encourages law firms to develop and implement best practices in 

diversity, equality and inclusion.  We are also proud members of Working Forward, the 

Equality & Human Rights Commission’s campaign to support pregnant women and new 

parents at work.  We also take our Corporate Responsibility seriously and this is now our 

third year of being a signatory to the Welsh Government’s Sustainable Development 

Charter and a member of the Legal Sustainability Alliance. 

 

3. The extent of pregnancy and maternity discrimination in the Welsh public sector - 

the effect of the Public Sector Equality Duty 

                                                           
1 www.slatelegal.co.uk 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 

3.1. In our experience, the extent of pregnancy and maternity discrimination in the Welsh public 

sector has been greatly reduced due to the positive effect of the introduction of the Public 

Sector Equality Duty (“PSED”) on 5 April 2011, and the additional Wales Specific Duties 

on 6 April 2011.   

 

3.2. The PSED and the additional Wales Specific Duties have undoubtedly brought beneficial 

changes in a number of areas within the Welsh public sector, and even beyond - since the 

well-being benefits for public sector staff whose employers actively promote cultures of 

inclusivity, fairness and respect are often felt not only by the staff but by their families and 

friends. 

 

3.3. It is clear from the report of July 2014 by the Equality & Human Rights Commission Wales 

following their review of the PSED in Wales2, that the PSED has helped mainstream 

equality and diversity issues and has rightly raised the profile of the equality and diversity 

agenda.  The contrast between how such issues were addressed 15 years ago compared 

to today is, in many public sector organisations, stark.  The profile of the equality and 

diversity agenda in public sector organisations in Wales was clearly much lower 15 years 

ago, than it is today.  Seven years on from the introduction of the PSED, cultures of 

fairness, dignity and respect in the workplace appear to be embedded in most of the public 

sector organisations that we have come across. 

 

3.4. It should be said that a number of public sector employers were doing the right thing as 

regards equality and diversity long before they became legally obliged to do so and in this 

regard the PSED and the additional Wales Specific Duties have supported/supplemented 

such work.  However, for the most part, we doubt progress would have happened, or at 

least, we doubt significant progress would have happened by now, had there not been a 

change in the law. 

 

3.5. It is clear that as a result of the PSED and the additional Wales Specific Duties, the public 

sector in Wales leads the way in promoting equality and diversity in the workplace.  A job 

candidate today choosing to work in the public sector can realistically expect their potential 

employer to spend time and resources actively promoting equality and diversity, rather 

than merely treating it as an ‘add-on’.  If they have come from the private sector, they may 

have been unlucky enough to have worked for an employer who, cynically, viewed their 

equality and diversity obligations as amounting to no more than having a policy and being 

able to tick the box in order to be in with a chance of winning public sector contracts. 

 

3.6. Many public sector organisations with 250 or more employees have published their gender 

pay gap data long before they were legally obliged to do so on 30 March 2018.  Our 

impression is that few similarly sized private and third sector employers have done 

likewise (ahead of the deadline of 4 April 2018). 

 

3.7. The current threshold of 250 employees excludes too many women.  According to the 

Fawcett Society’s Sex Discrimination Law Review of January 20183, 99% of businesses 

                                                           
2https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/review_of_psed_in_wales_full_report_english_nov2014.pd
f 
3 https://www.fawcettsociety.org.uk/Handlers/Download.ashx?IDMF=e473a103-28c1-4a6c-aa43-5099d34c0116 

Tudalen y pecyn 52



 

Page 3 of 7 

 

across the UK fall below the threshold4.  Looking beyond our national borders, gender pay 

gap reporting regulations in France apply to organisations with over 50 employees and in 

Sweden to those with over 25 employees5.  We support the Fawcett Society’s 

recommendation for the regulations to be amended by 2020 to progressively lower the 

threshold to workplaces with over 50 employees and for the gender pay gap to be further 

broken down by age, disability, race, LGBT and part-time status. 

 

3.8. However, despite the improvements brought by the PSED and the additional Wales 

Specific Duties in countering harassment and discrimination within public sector 

organisations, and reducing the extent of pregnancy and maternity discrimination in the 

Welsh public sector, there remain areas where improvements can and should be made to 

further reduce the extent of such discrimination. 

 

4. Examples of pregnancy and maternity discrimination in the Welsh public sector 

 

4.1. We have advised on a number of incidences of pregnancy and maternity discrimination in 

the Welsh public sector.  Examples range from low level one-off incidents or isolated 

events which would be classed as being within the bottom of the updated Vento6 bands 

(injury to feelings compensation for which would be £800-£8,400), to serious cases which 

would be within the middle Vento band (compensation for which would be £8,400 - 

£25,200), to the most serious cases which would be within the top Vento band such as 

where there has been a lengthy campaign of harassment (compensation for which would 

be £25,200 - £42,000). 

 

Lack of consultation during maternity leave 

 

4.2. In a number of cases, changes have been made to employees’ jobs, by stealth, without 

prior consultation whilst they were on maternity leave.  Some complained that managers 

had allowed work colleagues to chip away at their role whilst they were on maternity leave 

with the missing pieces never being restored following their return to work.  The changes 

in question were often relatively minor, but were nevertheless changes which the employer 

would have been less likely to have attempted had the employee not been on maternity 

leave. 

 

4.3. Similarly, it is surprising how often we have come across business reorganisations taking 

place whilst employees are on maternity leave without the employee being informed or 

consulted.  Finding out about such reorganizations by chance a long time after the event 

and shortly before returning to work, has caused further anxiety to many employees at a 

time when they should be enjoying their maternity leave. 

 

4.4. When redundancy situations purportedly arise during maternity leave, it is particularly 

difficult for pregnant employees to prove unfavourable treatment and Employment Judges 

                                                           
4 Rhodes, C (2016). House of Commons Library: Briefing Paper Number 06152 Business Statistics 
5 DLA Piper (2017). Gender Pay Reporting: An International Survey. 
https://www.dlapiper.com/~/media/Files/Insights/ 
Events/2017/01/Annual%20Employment%20CLE%20Briefing_Gender%20pay%20survey.pdf 
6 In Vento v Chief Constable of West Yorkshire Police (No 2) [2003] IRLR 102 (CA), the Court of Appeal set 
clear guidelines for the amount of compensation to be given for injury to feelings and set out three bands of 
potential awards. These bands were updated on 05 09 17 by Presidential Guidance for claims on/after 11 09 17. 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



 

Page 4 of 7 

 

are understandably reluctant to deny an employer’s right to manage their business as they 

see fit. 

 

4.5. Another common issue is that of internal vacancies arising, which would often amount to 

promotion opportunities, which are simply not communicated to the employee on maternity 

leave.  Despite employers being entitled to make ‘reasonable contact’ with employees who 

are on maternity leave, they often fail to do so.  Such issues could be avoided by putting in 

place an agreed communication plan (see best practice point 6.5.1 below). 

 

General lack of communication with employees on maternity leave 

 

4.6. In one case, the only correspondence received by a client during 12 months of maternity 

leave was a letter telling her about the office Christmas party and a second letter shortly 

prior to her anticipated return to work confirming the date when her SMP would end and 

the anticipated return to work date.  The client felt as though she had been ‘cut off’ from 

communication during maternity leave. 

 

Unconscious bias & stereotypical assumptions 

 

4.7. Unconscious bias frequently appears at the recruitment stage.  For example, in 

assessment centres, the questions and tests set for candidates often do not take into 

account emotional intelligence or ‘soft skills’ but frequently look at skills that are more 

geared towards men. 

 

4.8. Employees who have recently returned to work following maternity leave have reported 

managers making stereotypical assumptions that they are less interested in career 

progression than their male work colleagues. 

 

4.9. Similarly, male gender-biased language (such as active, confident, lead, analyse and 

competitive) often features in job adverts (and job descriptions), describing traditional 

‘alpha male’ roles.  We are aware of several female clients who have been dissuaded from 

applying for jobs because they did not identify with such a job description. 

 

Tight time limit for discrimination claims 

 

4.10. Where women have experienced discrimination shortly before or during maternity leave, 

many do not feel that they are in the right place, physically or mentally, to bring a claim.  

We support the Fawcett Society’s recommendation7 that the time limit for all discrimination 

and harassment claims linked to pregnancy and maternity be increased to six months. 

 

4.11. Without the benefit of legal advice, many employees - both male and female - struggle to 

understand how to calculate the relevant extended time limit for bringing any discrimination 

claims and ACAS are not at liberty to advise on such matters.  There is an urgent need for 

a user friendly online calculator to assist potential claimants in this regard. 

 

Discrimination Questionnaires 

 

                                                           
7 https://www.fawcettsociety.org.uk/Handlers/Download.ashx?IDMF=e473a103-28c1-4a6c-aa43-5099d34c0116 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



 

Page 5 of 7 

 

4.12. Discrimination Questionnaires – which were unjustifiably scrapped on 6 April 2014 - should 

be reintroduced for all types of discrimination.  I am old enough to remember and to have 

completed and responded to such questionnaires on behalf of clients.  Such 

questionnaires were a vital tool for prospective claimants as they provided an opportunity 

to gather the information necessary to decide whether or not to proceed with a claim by 

front-ending much of the disclosure and information gathering process long in advance of 

any disclosure exercise as part of Employment Tribunal proceedings.  They also 

empowered the Employment Tribunal to draw adverse inferences of discrimination in the 

event that the employer’s reply was late (later than 8 weeks from the date of receipt), 

evasive, equivocal or non-existent.  Answers to a statutory questionnaire were admissible 

in evidence at a Tribunal Hearing. 

 

Harassment 

 

4.13. A number of clients have complained that they have felt under pressure by their manager 

not to have any more children.  For example, whilst pregnant their male manager 

questioned them about whether they planned to have any more children, commenting that 

he hoped they would not as the team was a close-knit small team which worked well and 

he wanted to minimise any disruption. 

 

Third party sexual harassment 

 

4.14. Clients have recounted their experiences of sexual harassment from external training 

providers engaged by their employers to carry out workforce training.  Examples include 

inappropriate jokes, asking about whether they have plans to have any more children and 

unwelcome touching of their bump.  Prior to 2013, such conduct was prohibited by section 

40 of the Equality Act 2010, subject to there having been at least 2 such incidents.  

However, this section was repealed in 2013 thus removing this protection. 

 

4.15. We refer to the Fawcett Society’s excellent Sex Discrimination Law Review of January 

20188 and support their call for the reintroduction of section 40 of the Equality Act 2010 

with an amendment so that it requires only a single prior incident of harassment - after all, 

why should protection from such harassment be harder to obtain just because the 

harasser is a third party?  Pregnancy and maternity, as well as marriage and civil 

partnership status, should also be included as protected characteristics for the purpose of 

prohibiting such harassment. 

 

5. Variances between different groups of women 

 

5.1. Single parents often have less support than those who have a partner, spouse or civil 

partner who can be relied on for help and support with child care.  They consequently have 

even less free time within which to submit a discrimination claim (see 4.10 above). 

 

5.2. For practical or economic reasons, women whose partners, spouses or civil partners work 

long hours or are higher paid, tend to be expected to take responsibility for the majority of 

child-care. 

 

                                                           
8 https://www.fawcettsociety.org.uk/Handlers/Download.ashx?IDMF=e473a103-28c1-4a6c-aa43-5099d34c0116 

Tudalen y pecyn 55



 

Page 6 of 7 

 

5.3. Generally, the more senior a woman within the organisation, the easier it is for her to 

return with greater flexibility because of her greater autonomy.  More junior female staff will 

find it even harder to progress their careers within an organisation as with less flexibility 

their options are more limited. 

 

5.4. Recent evidence from the Fawcett Society9 shows that the gender pay gap in Britain is 

shaped by racial inequality.  In particular, Pakistani and Bangladeshi women have the 

largest gender pay gap of all – their aggregate (full and part-time) gender pay gap with 

white British men being 26.2%. 

 

6. Examples of good practice 

 

6.1. Happily, most of the examples of good practice that we have come across as employment 

law practitioners have come from the public sector.  This is not due to any particular magic 

unique to the public sector, it is not inherently better at tackling discrimination than the 

private sector, it is simply that the public sector equality duty has forced public sector 

organisations to take steps to actively promote equality and diversity or face claims in the 

Employment Tribunals. 

 

6.2. Mixed sex recruitment panels – Having mixed sex recruitment panels and where there 

are no appropriate female personnel, engaging female HR consultants.  Requiring all 

members of recruitment panels to have undergone unconscious bias training within 2 

years prior to joining the panel. 

 

6.3. Flexible working - Allowing staff to work their core hours flexibly.  Flexibility being the 

norm, rather than the exception.  Leaders setting the culture of the organisation, leading by 

example, talking and walking the talk. 

 

6.4. Agile working – Exploiting modern technologies to facilitate flexible and remote working 

(skype for business; encrypted smart phones, wifi enabled encrypted laptops; cloud-based 

solutions) and more open internal communications channels like Yammer/instant 

messaging. 

 

6.5. Maternity Policy – Promoting a consistent approach to maternity across the organisation 

and increasing awareness of the support available for pregnant employees including: 

 

6.5.1. Agreed communication plans – agreeing how to notify stakeholders about the 

maternity leave, and how often and who will communicate with the employee 

during her maternity leave. 

 

6.5.2. Agreed handover plans - ensuring that the employee's work will be covered with 

the minimum of interruption to the organisation whilst on maternity leave. 

 

6.6. The right corporate culture - Fostering a flexible and dynamic corporate culture where 

the leaders champion equality and diversity and practise flexible working and live these 

                                                           
9 Li, Y. and Breach, A (2017). Gender Pay Gap by Ethnicity – Briefing. (London: Fawcett Society). https://www. 
fawcettsociety.org.uk/Handlers/Download.ashx?IDMF=f31d6adc-9e0e-4bfe-a3df-3e85605ee4a9 

Tudalen y pecyn 56



 

Page 7 of 7 

 

values as role models so that more junior female employees are encouraged and 

empowered to exercise their family friendly rights knowing that it will not be frowned upon. 

 

6.7. Women’s networks – Important for inspiration, learning from other women, boosting self-

belief and giving perspective to the decisions and challenges ahead. 

 

6.8. Mentoring & coaching – Actively supporting, guiding and developing female employees 

to be the best they can be, including encouraging more women into senior management 

roles. 

 

6.9. Unconscious bias training – Unconscious bias can and often does permeate all aspects 

of the day-to-day management of employees having unfortunately become part of our 

psyche due to the constant subtle reinforcement of stereotypes from generation to 

generation.  Requiring all managers to undergo unconscious bias training within 3 months 

of their appointment (to be repeated every 3 years), if they have not already had such 

training. 

 

7. Conclusion 

Slate Legal is delighted to have been able to assist the Equality, Local Government and 

Communities Committee by providing evidence relevant to its inquiry into pregnancy, maternity 

and work in Wales. 

We hope that the inquiry will result in prompt, effective action being taken by Welsh 

Government that will build on the progress already made towards combatting this type of 

discrimination in workplaces across Wales. 

23 March 2018 

Tudalen y pecyn 57



Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau 

19 Ebrill 2018 – clawr y papurau i’w nodi 

Rhif y papur Mater Oddi wrth Gweithredu 

ELGC(5)-11-18 

Papur 7 
 

Cyllideb Ddrafft 

Llywodraeth 

Cymru 2018-19 

Cadeirydd y 

Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl 

Ifanc ac Addysg 

Llythyr at 

Ysgrifennydd y 

Cabinet dros 

Addysg ynglŷn â’r 

Gyllideb Ddrafft 

2018-19 

ELGC(5)-11-18 

Papur 8 
 

Ymchwiliad i 

Hawliau Dynol 

yng Nghymru 

John Griffiths AC, 

Cadeirydd y 

Pwyllgor 

Cydraddoldeb, 

Llywodraeth Leol a 

Chymunedau a 

David Rees AC, 

Cadeirydd y 

Pwyllgor Materion 

Allanol a 

Deddfwriaeth 

Ychwanegol 

Llythyr at y Prif 

Weinidog ynglŷn â 

hawliau dynol yng 

Nghymru 

ELGC(5)-11-18 

Papur 9 
 
 

Ymchwiliad i 

Hawliau Dynol 

yng Nghymru 

Christina Mckelvie 

MSP, Cadeirydd y 

Pwyllgor 

Cydraddoldeb a 

Hawliau Dynol, 

Senedd yr Alban 

Gwahoddiad i 

fynychu sesiwn 

dystiolaeth ynglŷn 

â Hawliau Dynol a 

Senedd yr Alban 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 58

Eitem 5



Kirsty Williams AC 

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Addysg 
Llywodraeth Cymru  

14 Mawrth 2018 

Annwyl Kirsty  

Diolch i chi am eich diweddariad, a ddaeth i law ar 28 Chwefror 2018, yn dilyn 

eich ymateb i argymhelliad 7 y Pwyllgor yn ei adroddiad am gyllideb ddrafft 

Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2018-19. 

Mae'n ymddangos bod eich ymateb yn cadarnhau bod y cyllid i gefnogi deilliannau 

addysgol dysgwyr Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr, a dysgwyr o leiafrifoedd ethnig yn 

wir yn cael ei dynnu o'r Grant Gwella Addysg ac y bydd yn cael ei ddarparu o'r 

Grant Cynnal Refeniw sydd heb ei neilltuo. Nododd y Pwyllgor eich diweddariad yn 

ei gyfarfod ar 8 Mawrth 2018 a phenderfynodd ysgrifennu atoch i godi nifer o 

bwyntiau ar y mater hwn. 

Mae'r pwyntiau hyn yn ymwneud yn gyntaf â'r penderfyniad i ariannu'r maes 

darpariaeth hwn drwy'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw yn hytrach na'r Grant Gwella Addysg, 

ac yn ail y drefn ar gyfer symud yr arian hwn o'r un grant i'r llall.  

Y penderfyniad i ddadneilltuo ymhellach y cyllid ar gyfer dysgwyr Sipsiwn, Roma a 

Theithwyr, a dysgwyr o leiafrifoedd ethnig 

Fel y gwyddoch o ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor ynghylch y Grant Gwella Addysg: Plant 

Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr, a phlant o leiafrifoedd ethnig, rydym yn pryderu am 

effaith ar y grwpiau hyn o ddisgyblion yn sgil cyfuno grantiau a oedd wedi'u 

neilltuo â'r Grant Gwella Addysg o 2015-16 ymlaen. Daeth y Pwyllgor i'r casgliad 

o'r dystiolaeth a ddaeth i law, ar ôl uno'r grantiau unigol blaenorol â'r Grant 

ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 7/ Paper 7 
Oddi wrth: Llywodraeth Cymru 

From: Welsh Governent 

Tudalen y pecyn 59

Eitem 5.1

http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=16200
http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=16200


 

Gwella Addysg, fod diffyg gwaith monitro ynghylch sut y mae cyllid yn cael ei 

ddefnyddio i gefnogi deilliannau addysgol y dysgwyr hyn a diffyg gwerthusiad o'r 

effaith y mae'n ei chael.  

Fe wnaethoch chi dderbyn nifer o'r argymhellion sydd wedi'u hanelu at wella'r 

gwaith o fonitro a gwerthuso'r Grant Gwella Addysg, yn benodol mewn perthynas 

â dysgwyr Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr, a dysgwyr o leiafrifoedd ethnig. Er 

enghraifft, fe wnaethoch chi ymrwymo i gryfhau fframwaith y Grant Gwella 

Addysg, gan dderbyn mewn egwyddor argymhelliad y dylai fframwaith o'r fath 

gyfeirio'n llawer mwy penodol at y deilliannau a fwriedir ar gyfer dysgwyr Sipsiwn, 

Roma a Theithwyr, a dysgwyr o leiafrifoedd ethnig. Yn y ddadl yn y Cyfarfod Llawn 

ar 3 Mai 2017, dywedoch: 

Un o’r argymhellion rwy’n cytuno’n arbennig o gryf ag ef yw nad yw’r 

fframwaith perfformiad addysg presennol yn ddigon cadarn. Nid ydyw, 

yn syml, ac nid oedd modd cuddio rhag hynny yn ystod sesiynau’r 

pwyllgor. (...) 

Mae ['adroddiad gwerthfawr' y Pwyllgor] wedi cryfhau fy ngallu i ysgogi 

pobl i weithredu yn yr adran, yn enwedig mewn perthynas â monitro. 

Fodd bynnag, ymddengys na fydd y 'fframwaith canlyniadau mwy cadarn' hwn yn y 

dyfodol yn cynnig unrhyw fuddion i ddysgwyr Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr, a 

dysgwyr o leiafrifoedd ethnig, o ganlyniad i'r penderfyniad i dynnu'r cyllid 

perthnasol o'r Grant Gwella Addysg. Pan argymhellodd y Pwyllgor y dylech ystyried 

a yw cyflwyno'r Grant Gwella Addysg wedi gwella canlyniadau i'r grwpiau hyn o 

ddysgwyr a pharhau i gadw llygad ar y model cyllido yn ystod y Cynulliad hwn, nid 

oeddem yn rhagweld flwyddyn yn ddiweddarach y byddai'r cyllid hwn yn cael ei 

ddadneilltuo ymhellach ac y byddai disgwyl i awdurdodau lleol ei ariannu o'r Grant 

Cynnal Refeniw.  

Tudalen y pecyn 60



 

Er bod y Pwyllgor yn cydnabod bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi bod yn 'ail-

flaenoriaethu' cyllid llywodraeth leol drwy symud i ffwrdd o grantiau penodol tuag 

at y Grant Cynnal Refeniw, mae'r penderfyniad hwn yn ein siomi ac rydym yn 

credu ei fod yn mynd yn erbyn y trywydd a nodwyd yn eich ymateb i'n 

hymchwiliad.   

Rydym yn nodi mai un o ddibenion ailflaenoriaethu cyllid llywodraeth leol yw 

gwarchod cyllidebau ysgolion rheng flaen. Fodd bynnag, fel y nodir ymhellach yn 

y llythyr hwn, nid yw'n amlwg i ni sut y mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi darparu'r 

£13 miliwn a dynnwyd o'r Grant Gwella Addysg drwy gyfrwng y Grant Cynnal 

Refeniw. Felly, byddem yn ddiolchgar o gael rhagor o wybodaeth mewn ymateb i'r 

cwestiynau canlynol: 

 Sut y mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn bwriadu monitro a gwerthuso canlyniadau 

cyllid y Grant Cynnal Refeniw i gefnogi dysgwyr Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr, 

a dysgwyr o leiafrifoedd ethnig? 

 Pa gamau y bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn eu cymryd yn sgil argymhellion y 

Pwyllgor, yr ydych wedi'u derbyn, o ran effaith a chanlyniadau'r Grant 

Gwella Addysg ar y grwpiau hyn o ddysgwyr, gan fod y cyllid bellach y tu 

allan i'r Grant Gwella Addysg? 

 A allwch chi ddarparu copi i'r Pwyllgor o'r Asesiad o'r Effaith ar Hawliau 

Plant a'r Asesiad o'r Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb y cynhaliodd Llywodraeth 

Cymru cyn gwneud y penderfyniad i newid y ffordd y darperir cyllid ar gyfer 

y grwpiau hyn o ddysgwyr? 

 Sut y gwnaeth yr Asesiad o'r Effaith ar Hawliau Plant a'r Asesiad o'r Effaith ar 

Gydraddoldeb ddylanwadu ar Lywodraeth Cymru wrth iddi wneud y 

penderfyniad hwn? 

Symud cyllid o'r Grant Gwella Addysg i'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



 

Yn ogystal â phryderon y Pwyllgor ynghylch y penderfyniad i ddadneilltuo'r cyllid 

ymhellach ar gyfer dysgwyr Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr, a dysgwyr o leiafrifoedd 

ethnig, rydym yn arbennig o bryderus ynghylch sicrhau tryloywder o ran yr union 

ffordd y mae'r arian hwn yn symud i'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw.  

Mae'r setliad llywodraeth leol ar gyfer 2018-19 (tabl Excel 9) yn dangos bod 

gwerth y Grant Gwella Addysg yn gostwng gan £15 miliwn, o £133 miliwn yn 

2017-18 i £118 miliwn yn 2018-19. Yn ystod y gwaith craffu ar y gyllideb ddrafft, 

fe ddywedoch chi wrth y Pwyllgor bod £2 filiwn o hyn yn ostyngiad gwirioneddol, 

tra bod £13 miliwn yn cael ei dynnu o'r Grant Gwella Addysg ac yn cael ei 

ddarparu i awdurdodau lleol drwy'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw. Fodd bynnag, nid yw'n 

amlwg sut y mae hyn wedi'i gynnwys yn y Grant Cynnal Refeniw ar gyfer 2018-19 

gan nad yw wedi'i restru ymhlith y trosglwyddiadau grant yn nhabl 8 y setliad. 

Yn eich gwybodaeth fwyaf diweddaraf i'r Pwyllgor, dywedoch nad yw 'hyn' (rydym 

yn tybio bod hyn yn golygu tynnu £13 miliwn o'r Grant Gwella Addysg) yn gyfystyr 

â throsglwyddiad grant ac felly nad yw'n ddarostyngedig i'r un prosesau ac 

ystyriaethau dosbarthiadol. Rydym yn deall mai'r broses arferol pan fydd cyllid 

grant yn cael ei drosglwyddo i'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw yw bod yr Is-grŵp 

Dosbarthu yn argymell sut i wneud hyn. Enghraifft o hyn yw bod modd ychwanegu 

Asesiad Seiliedig ar Ddangosydd newydd i'r wybodaeth a gyhoeddir fel rhan o'r 

setliad llywodraeth leol er mwyn dangos mewn egwyddor sut y cyfrifwyd y Grant 

Cynnal Refeniw. Dyma sydd wedi digwydd yn achos nifer o grantiau a 

drosglwyddwyd yn 2018-19, gan gynnwys Grant y Gweithlu Cymdeithasol, Grant 

Byw'n Annibynnol Cymru ac elfen gwastraff y Grant Refeniw Sengl. Mae'n 

ymddangos nad yw hyn wedi digwydd yn achos symud elfen y Grant Gwella 

Addysg sy'n cefnogi addysg Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr, a lleiafrifoedd ethnig. 

Mae hyn yn peri cryn bryder i'r Pwyllgor. Er ei bod yn amlwg bod yr £13 miliwn 

wedi cael ei dynnu o'r Grant Gwella Addysg, nid yw'n amlwg a fydd yr arian hwn 

yn cael ei drosglwyddo i'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw, ac os felly, beth fydd y drefn ar 

Tudalen y pecyn 62

http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/settlement/lg-settlement-2018-19/final-local-gov-settlement-2018-19/?lang=cy


 

gyfer gwneud hyn. Yn eich papur i'r Pwyllgor am y gyllideb ddrafft (tudalen 39), 

dywedoch fod gostyngiad o £13.145 miliwn yn y Grant Gwella Addysg yn 2018-

19 yn ariannu trosglwyddiad i'r cronfeydd canolog wrth gefn. 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn ymwybodol bod yna rai pryderon ymhlith llywodraeth leol bod 

risg y bydd dan anfantais yn ariannol, h.y. y bydd disgwyl iddi barhau i ddarparu'r 

gwasanaethau hyn o ddyraniadau'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw ond heb ychwanegiad 

gweledol nac amlwg i'r cyllid hwnnw. Fel yr amlygwyd yn ystod y gwaith craffu ar y 

gyllideb ddrafft (llythyr Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol a 

Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus at y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth 

Leol, dyddiedig 13 Tachwedd 2017), mae elfen ysgolion y Cyllid Allanol Cyfun 

wedi cynyddu £1.5 miliwn (0.1%) yn unig rhwng 2017-18 a 2018-19. 

At hynny, mae'r Pwyllgor yn pryderu, heb y cyllid angenrheidiol, na all 

awdurdodau lleol barhau i ddarparu'r gwasanaethau hyn i ddysgwyr Sipsiwn, 

Roma a Theithwyr, a dysgwyr o leiafrifoedd ethnig, neu y byddant yn torri'r 

gwasanaethau hyn yn sylweddol. 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn nodi bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn darparu £5 miliwn o'r 

cronfeydd wrth gefn ar gyfer 2018-19 i liniaru'r effaith ar brif awdurdodau trefol 

Cymru, a £2.5 miliwn arall yn 2018-19 i hwyluso dulliau gweithredu rhanbarthol o 

gefnogi'r grwpiau hyn o ddysgwyr. Rydych yn dweud mai cyllid ychwanegol yw 

hwn, ond nid yw'n amlwg at beth y mae'n ychwanegol, o ystyried y diffyg eglurder 

ynghylch a yw'r arian a dynnwyd o'r Grant Gwella Addysg bellach yn rhan o'r Grant 

Cynnal Refeniw neu yng nghronfeydd wrth gefn Llywodraeth Cymru. 

Byddem yn ddiolchgar o gael rhagor o wybodaeth mewn ymateb i'r cwestiynau 

canlynol:  

 A allwch chi roi eglurder pellach ynghylch a yw'r £13.1 miliwn yn cael ei 

drosglwyddo i'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw a beth fydd y drefn ar gyfer gwneud 

Tudalen y pecyn 63



 

hyn? (Rydych yn dweud yn eich ymateb nad trosglwyddiad grant yw 'hwn' 

ond a allwch chi gadarnhau beth yw ystyr 'hwn' yn y cyd-destun hwn?) 

 A allwch gadarnhau a yw'r £5 miliwn rydych wedi'i ddyrannu yn 2018-19 ar 

gyfer awdurdodau trefol ar gael i Gaerdydd, Casnewydd ac Abertawe yn 

unig, a sut y mae'n cael ei ddyrannu? 

 Pa drefniadau sydd ar waith i ariannu darpariaeth awdurdodau lleol eraill 

sydd â dysgwyr Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr, neu ddysgwyr o leiafrifoedd 

ethnig? (Er mai Caerdydd, Casnewydd ac Abertawe sydd â'r crynodiadau 

mwyaf o'r grwpiau hyn o ddysgwyr, mae awdurdodau lleol eraill hefyd yn 

darparu gwasanaethau i'r dysgwyr hyn. Gellid dadlau ei bod yn fwy heriol a 

chostus yn gyfrannol i sicrhau gwasanaethau o safon mewn ardaloedd heb 

'fàs critigol' o ddysgwyr.) 

 A allwch chi roi manylion ynghylch sut y caiff y £2.5 miliwn sy'n cael ei 

ddyrannu yn 2018-19 i hwyluso dulliau gweithredu rhanbarthol ei ddyrannu 

rhwng y pedwar rhanbarth?  

 A allwch gadarnhau mai Wrecsam fydd yr awdurdod arweiniol yn rhanbarth 

y Gogledd (ac os nad yw'n derbyn rhan o'r £5 miliwn, beth yw'r rhesymau 

dros y penderfyniad hwnnw)? 

 A yw'r dyraniadau o £5 miliwn a £2.5 miliwn ar ben yr £13.1 miliwn y mae 

Llywodraeth Cymru yn ei ddweud sydd ar gael yn y Grant Cynnal Refeniw 

neu a yw mewn gwirionedd yn ostyngiad o £5.6 miliwn o'r lefel bresennol o 

gyllid? (Mae'r Pwyllgor o'r farn ei bod yn bwysig egluro hyn gan eich bod 

wedi gwahaniaethu yn ystod y gwaith craffu ar y gyllideb ddrafft rhwng y 

'gostyngiad' o £2 filiwn yn y Grant Gwella Addysg yn 2018-19 a 'thynnu' yr 

£13.1 miliwn i'w ddarparu yn y Grant Cynnal Refeniw.)  

Tudalen y pecyn 64



 

 Ai dyraniadau untro yw'r £5 miliwn a'r £2.5 miliwn yn 2018-19? Pa 

gefnogaeth a fydd yn cael ei darparu'n rheolaidd i ariannu'r maes 

darpariaeth hwn? 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn edrych ymlaen at eich ymateb i'r pwyntiau y mae'r llythyr hwn yn 

eu codi, gan gynnwys y cwestiynau penodol. Byddem yn gwerthfawrogi ymateb 

cynnar o ystyried pa mor agos yw'r flwyddyn ariannol newydd. 

Yn gywir 

 

Lynne Neagle AC 

Cadeirydd 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 65



Y Gwir Anrhydeddus Carwyn Jones AC  
Prif Weinidog Cymru 

                                                                                                     5 Ebrill 2018 

Annwyl Prif Weinidog,  

                        Goblygiadau Brexit o ran cydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol 

Mae gan Gymru hanes anrhydeddus o ddiogelu cydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol 

mewn ffyrdd blaengar ac arloesol, a hynny hyd yn oed yng nghyd-destun setliad 

datganoli cyfyngedig. Mae Cymru wedi mynd y tu hwnt i wledydd eraill y DU ac 

wedi bod ar flaen y gad yn y meysydd hyn: yn 2003, y Cynulliad oedd y 

ddeddfwrfa gyntaf yn y byd i gyflawni cydraddoldeb rhwng y rhywiau; yn 

ddiweddarach, pasiwyd Mesur Hawliau Plant a Phobl Ifanc (Cymru) 2011. 

Mae'r Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau a'r Pwyllgor 

Materion Allanol a Deddfwriaeth Ychwanegol wedi gwneud gwaith ar oblygiadau 

Brexit yng Nghymru o ran cydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol.  

Mae'r dystiolaeth ysgrifenedig  a'r dystiolaeth lafar a ddarparwyd i'r Pwyllgor 

Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau, a'r dystiolaeth lafar a ddarparwyd 

i'r Pwyllgor Materion Allanol a Deddfwriaeth Ychwanegol ar gael ar wefan y 

Cynulliad. Mae'r llythyr hwn yn crynhoi'r safbwyntiau, y cwestiynau a'r 

argymhellion a ddeilliodd o'r dystiolaeth a gafodd y ddau bwyllgor. Nid yw dau 

Aelod o'r Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau, sef Gareth 

Bennett AC a Janet Finch-Saunders AC, yn cytuno â'r safbwyntiau a'r argymhellion 

sydd wedi'u nodi yn y llythyr hwn.   

 

 

ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 8/ Paper 8   
Oddi wrth: Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau 
Y Pwyllgor Materion Allanol a Deddfwriaeth Ychwanegol 
From: Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee  
and External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee 

Tudalen y pecyn 66

Eitem 5.2

http://www.senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?id=244&RPID=1510279080&cp=yes
http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s65358/6%20April%202017.html?CT=2
http://record.assembly.wales/Committee/4631


Siarter Hawliau Sylfaenol yr UE 

Yn dilyn ein sesiynau tystiolaeth, did ydym eto wedi ein hargyhoeddi ynghylch 

honiad Llywodraeth y DU, yn ei dadansoddiad fesul hawl o'r Siarter, fod holl 

hawliau'r Siarter eisoes wedi'u diogelu gan gyfraith ddomestig y DU. Fel y mae 

cyngor cyfreithiol y Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol (EHRC) yn ei nodi: 

“...contrary to the [UK] Government’s analysis, the Charter has created valuable 

new rights, and extended the scope of existing rights, and could continue to do 

so if Charter provisions were incorporated into domestic law”.  

Rydym yn croesawu'r cam o gynnwys adran 7 yn y Bil Cyfraith sy’n Deillio o’r 

Undeb Ewropeaidd (Cymru), a fyddai'n golygu bod yn rhaid dehongli cyfraith 

Cymru sy'n deillio o'r UE yn unol â'r Siarter Hawliau Sylfaenol.  

Os nad yw'r Bil hwn yn mynd rhagddo am unrhyw reswm, hoffem weld 

Llywodraeth Cymru yn nodi sut y bydd yn sicrhau bod hawliau'r Siarter yn parhau i 

gael eu gweithredu yng Nghymru. 

Cyllid 

Clywsom bryderon ynghylch dyfodol trefniadau cyllido'r UE gan nifer o 

sefydliadau. Yn ei hymateb i ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth 

Leol a Chymunedau, nododd Llywodraeth Cymru: 

“Ar hyn o bryd, bydd Cymru'n cael £370 miliwn y flwyddyn gan yr Undeb 

Ewropeaidd i'w fuddsoddi yn Rhaglenni Cronfeydd Strwythurol a Buddsoddi 

Ewropeaidd 2014-2020 [sy'n cynnwys Cronfa Gymdeithasol Ewrop a 

Chronfa Datblygu Rhanbarthol Ewrop]. […] Cyfle Cyfartal a Phrif Ffrydio 

Rhywedd (EO a GM) yw un o'r tair thema drawsbynciol sydd wedi'u cynnwys 

yn rhan o Raglenni 2014-2020”. 

Mae gwaith ymchwil a wnaed yn ddiweddar gan y Fforwm Cydraddoldeb ac 

Amrywiaeth ar sut y bydd cyllid yr UE ar gyfer cydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol yn 

cael ei ddisodli ar ôl Brexit yn tynnu sylw at y ffaith bod amcanion 8, 9 a 10 [o 

Raglen Cronfeydd Strwythurol a Buddsoddi yr Undeb Ewropeaidd] yn ymwneud yn 

Tudalen y pecyn 67

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/664891/05122017_Charter_Analysis_FINAL_VERSION.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/eu-withdrawal-bill-legal-advice-jason-coppel-qc.pdf
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s71761/ELGC5-05-18%20Paper%2019%20-%20Letter%20from%20the%20Leader%20of%20the%20House%20and%20Chief%20Whip.pdf
http://www.edf.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/EDF-SHARED-PROSPERITY-FULL-REPORT.pdf
http://www.edf.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/EDF-SHARED-PROSPERITY-FULL-REPORT.pdf


uniongyrchol â chydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol, ac y bydd y cyllid hwn yn werth 

£4.15 biliwn yn y DU rhwng 2014 a 2020. Y grwpiau targed ar gyfer y tri amcan 

hyn yw: pobl ifanc nad ydynt mewn addysg, cyflogaeth na hyfforddiant (NEETs), 

pobl sy'n 50 oed neu'n hŷn, menywod, pobl anabl a lleiafrifoedd ethnig, pobl â 

rhwystrau cymhleth lluosog, troseddwyr a chyn-droseddwyr. 

Canfu'r gwaith ymchwil fod cyllideb Cronfa Gymdeithasol Ewrop yn £1.4 biliwn yn 

yr Alban, Cymru a Gogledd Iwerddon. Mae oddeutu 60 y cant o brosiectau sy'n 

cael eu hariannu drwy Gronfa Gymdeithasol Ewrop yn targedu pobl sydd ag un 

neu fwy o'r nodweddion gwarchodedig sydd wedi'u nodi yn Neddf Cydraddoldeb 

2010. Canfu hefyd fod mwy na hanner y cyllid a geir drwy Gronfa Gymdeithasol 

Ewrop yn targedu cyflogadwyedd, sgiliau a phrofiad. 

Mae'r Pwyllgor Materion Allanol a Deddfwriaeth Ychwanegol eisoes wedi tynnu 

sylw at bryderon ynghylch dyfodol y cyllid a geir o Gronfa Gymdeithasol Ewrop fel 

rhan o'i ymchwiliad i ddyfodol polisi rhanbarthol yng Nghymru. Yn ddiweddar, 

gwnaeth y Pwyllgor argymhelliad y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru “geisio eglurder gan 

Lywodraeth y DU ar sut y byddai’r Gronfa Rhannu Ffyniant arfaethedig yn cael ei 

dyrannu a’i gweinyddu”. 

Rydym yn rhannu safbwynt ein tystion y dylai'r Gronfa Rhannu Ffyniant y mae 

Llywodraeth y DU wedi'i chynnig gael ei gweinyddu yng Nghymru gan Lywodraeth 

Cymru, a hynny er mwyn sicrhau ei bod yn ymateb i anghenion ac 

anghydraddoldebau lleol. Rydym hefyd o'r farn y dylid defnyddio'r Gronfa hon i 

fynd i'r afael ag anghydraddoldeb ac anfantais economaidd-gymdeithasol. 

Cymru yn arwain y byd 

Fel yr amlinellir uchod, mae gan Gymru hanes o fynd y tu hwnt i ofynion sylfaenol 

o ran safonau cydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol. Gwnaeth rhai o'r tystion 

awgrymiadau ynghylch sut y gellid cynnal y traddodiad hwn, fel: 

- cychwyn dyletswydd economaidd-gymdeithasol y Ddeddf Cydraddoldeb, 

sy'n bŵer a gaiff ei ddatganoli ym mis Ebrill o dan y setliad newydd. Byddai'r 

Tudalen y pecyn 68

http://www.senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=17267
http://www.senedd.cynulliad.cymru/documents/s71899/Sut%20y%20mae%20Llywodraeth%20Cymru%20yn%20paratoi%20ar%20gyfer%20Brexit%20-%20Chwefror%202018.pdf


ddyletswydd hon yn gosod gofyniad ar gyrff cyhoeddus i wneud 

penderfyniadau mewn modd sy'n mynd i'r afael ag anghydraddoldebau o 

ran deilliannau sy'n cael eu hachosi gan anfantais economaidd-

gymdeithasol. Mae'r Alban ar hyn o bryd yn y broses o gyflwyno'r 

ddyletswydd; 

- ymgorffori rhagor o gytundebau hawliau dynol rhyngwladol. Yn ôl yr Athro 

Simon Hoffman, byddai'n bosibl defnyddio'r model 'sylw dyledus' sydd i'w 

weld yn y Mesur Hawliau Plant a Phobl Ifanc a Deddf Gwasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru) i osod gofyniad ar awdurdodau cyhoeddus 

Cymru i roi sylw dyledus i gytundebau rhyngwladol eraill (er enghraifft, y 

Cyfamod Rhyngwladol ar Hawliau Economaidd, Cymdeithasol a Diwylliannol 

(ICESCR), neu'r Confensiwn ar Hawliau Pobl ag Anableddau (CRPD)). 

Mae cysylltiad digamsyniol rhwng anghydraddoldeb ac anfantais economaidd-

gymdeithasol yng Nghymru, ac mae bron chwarter y boblogaeth yn byw mewn 

tlodi. Rydym yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru amlinellu ei safbwynt 

diweddaraf ynghylch cyflwyno'r ddyletswydd economaidd-gymdeithasol, o gofio y 

bydd y pŵer i wneud hynny yn cael ei ddatganoli o dan y setliad newydd. Rydym 

hefyd yn nodi'r camau a gymerwyd gan Lywodraeth yr Alban i gyflwyno'r 

ddyletswydd, a bod ei hasesiad effaith ariannol wedi dod i'r casgliad a ganlyn: 

“...it has no significant financial effect of the Scottish Government, local 

authorities or on business”. 

Rydym hefyd yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru roi ystyriaeth i'r posibilrwydd 

o ymgorffori rhagor o gytundebau hawliau dynol rhyngwladol yng Nghymru, yn yr 

un modd â'r Mesur Hawliau Plant a Phobl Ifanc. 

Cymalau di-atchweliad 

Rydym yn nodi bod adran 3(2) o'r Bil Cyfraith sy’n Deillio o’r Undeb Ewropeaidd 

(Cymru) yn datgan bod yn rhaid i Weinidogion Cymru 'geisio' parhau â'r hawliau, y 

pwerau, y rhwymedigaethau a'r rhwymedïau sydd ar gael yn rhinwedd Deddf y 

Cymunedau Ewropeaidd 1972. 

Tudalen y pecyn 69

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/sdsi/2018/9780111038086/body
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s65358/6%20April%202017.html?CT=2
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s65358/6%20April%202017.html?CT=2
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/sdsi/2018/9780111038086/pdfs/sdsipn_9780111038086_en.pdf


Rydym hefyd yn nodi bod adran 4(2) o'r Bil yn cyfyngu'r addasiadau y gall 

Gweinidogion Cymru eu gwneud i ddeddfiad presennol mewn cysylltiad â'i 

ailddatgan. Gall Gweinidogion Cymru ond wneud addasiadau o'r fath os ydynt yn 

“ystyried bod yr addasu neu’r ddarpariaeth bellach yn angenrheidiol er mwyn 

sicrhau gweithrediad effeithiol y deddfiad ailddatganedig ar ôl i’r Deyrnas Unedig 

ymadael â’r Undeb Ewropeaidd”.  

Er ein bod yn dehongli'r adrannau hyn, i bob pwrpas, fel cymalau 'di-atchweliad' 

(cymalau a gefnogwyd gan nifer o'n tystion), rydym yn galw ar Lywodraeth Cymru 

i gadarnhau mai bwriad y darpariaethau hyn yw sicrhau nad yw'r hawliau a'r 

rhwymedigaethau sy'n bodoli ar hyn o bryd (yn enwedig y safonau cydraddoldeb a 

hawliau dynol sydd o fewn cymhwysedd datganoledig y Cynulliad) yn cael eu 

tanseilio neu eu diddymu o ganlyniad i Brexit—naill ai gan Lywodraeth y DU yn 

gweithredu o dan Fil yr Undeb Ewropeaidd (Ymadael), neu gan Weinidogion Cymru 

yn gweithredu o dan Fil y Cynulliad. 

Dilyniant cyfraith cydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol y tu hwnt i Brexit 

Mynegodd nifer o dystion bryder na fyddai dinasyddion y DU yn elwa o 

ddeddfwriaeth hygyrchedd a wneir yn y dyfodol gan yr UE, fel Deddf Hygyrchedd 

Ewrop, sydd â'r nod o gael rhagor o nwyddau hygyrchedd ar y farchnad, gan 

leihau rhwystrau i addysg a'r farchnad lafur agored a gwella hygyrchedd ar gyfer 

ffonau clyfar, peiriannau ATM ac offer teledu.  

Rydym yn nodi bod adran 11 o'r Bil Cyfraith sy’n Deillio o’r Undeb Ewropeaidd 

(Cymru) yn caniatáu i Weinidogion Cymru wneud rheoliadau sy'n cyflwyno 

deddfwriaeth newydd neu'n addasu deddfwriaeth gyfredol er mwyn sicrhau bod 

Cymru'n cadw'n wastad â deddfwriaeth sy'n cael ei phasio gan yr UE  ar ôl i'r DU 

adael yr UE. Os yw'r Bil yn destun ddeddfiad, gofynnwn i Lywodraeth Cymru 

ddefnyddio'r pŵer hwn i flaenoriaethu mesurau i ddiogelu cydraddoldeb a hawliau 

dynol (cyn belled ag y bo modd). Rydym hefyd yn ailadrodd galwad y Pwyllgor 

Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn 

“sefydlu mecanwaith ffurfiol i olrhain datblygiadau yn y dyfodol o ran hawliau 

Tudalen y pecyn 70

http://ec.europa.eu/social/main.jsp?catId=1202
http://ec.europa.eu/social/main.jsp?catId=1202


dynol a chydraddoldeb yn yr UE, i sicrhau bod dinasyddion Cymru yn elwa o'r un 

lefel o ddiogelwch â dinasyddion yr UE”. Credwn y dylai mecanwaith o'r fath fod ar 

gael i'r cyhoedd.  

Yn wahanol i'r sefyllfa mewn llawer o wladwriaethau eraill, nid yw'r hawl i 

gydraddoldeb yn y DU wedi'i ddiogelu gan fil o hawliau cyfansoddiadol, a fyddai'n 

cyfyngu i ba raddau y gall unrhyw ddeddfwriaeth yn y Senedd danseilio neu ddileu 

cydraddoldeb. Ar hyn o bryd, mae cyfraith yr UE yn darparu'r swyddogaeth 'wrth 

gefn' hon drwy sicrhau nad oes modd dileu na thanseilio'r hawliau sydd wedi'u 

nodi yn y Ddeddf Cydraddoldeb (gan eu bod yn ofynnol yn ôl cyfraith yr UE). Mae 

Erthygl 14 o'r Confensiwn Ewropeaidd ar Hawliau Dynol ond yn cyflawni'r un 

swyddogaeth yn rhannol; mae'n berthnasol dim ond pan fo hawl arall sy'n perthyn 

i'r Confensiwn ar waith, ac ni ellir gwrthod deddfwriaeth Senedd y DU am beidio â 

chydymffurfio ag Erthygl 14 (yn wahanol i'r sefyllfa o ran cyfraith yr UE).  

Mae'r Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol yn ymgyrchu dros gael hawl 

cyfansoddiadol, annibynnol i gydraddoldeb (drwy ddiwygio Deddf Hawliau Dynol 

1998 neu Ddeddf Cydraddoldeb 2010) fel rhan o'i gynllun pum pwynt ar gyfer 

Brexit. 

Ar 9 Mawrth, cyhoeddodd Llywodraeth y DU restr o'r meysydd a ddelir ar lefel 

Ewropeaidd ar hyn o bryd lle mae'n dymuno gweld Senedd y DU yn cadw 

cymhwysedd llwyr dros dro yn dilyn Brexit (yn hytrach na chael sefyllfa ddiofyn 

bod y cymhwysedd hwnnw'n gorwedd gyda'r deddfwrfeydd datganoledig). O ran 

deddfwriaeth sy'n ymwneud â thriniaeth gyfartal,1 mae Llywodraeth y DU o'r farn 

ei bod yn bosibl y bydd angen fframweithiau anneddfwriaethol cyffredin, ond y 

bydd angen trafodaethau mwy manwl ar y mater hwn, a'i bod yn bosibl y byddant 

yn gymysgedd o gymhwysedd wedi'i gadw a chymhwysedd datganoledig, gan 

                                       

1Gan gynnwys Cyfarwyddebau sy'n: gweithredu'r egwyddor o driniaeth gyfartal rhwng pobl waeth beth fo'u tarddiad 
hiliol neu ethnig (2000/43/EC); sefydlu fframwaith cyffredinol ar gyfer triniaeth gyfartal mewn cyflogaeth a 
galwedigaeth, gan wahardd gwahaniaethu oherwydd oedran, anabledd a chyfeiriadedd rhywiol (2000/78/EC); 
gweithredu'r egwyddor o driniaeth gyfartal rhwng dynion a menywod o ran cael mynediad at nwyddau a 
gwasanaethau a'r cyflenwad ohonynt, ac mewn materion cyflogaeth a meddiannaeth (2004/113/EC a 2006/54/EC). 
Mae Erthygl 157 o'r Cytuniad ar Weithrediad yr UE hefyd yn berthnasol yn y cyd-destun hwn. 

Tudalen y pecyn 71

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/healing-the-divisions-a-positive-vision-for-equality-and-human-rights-in-britain.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/healing-the-divisions-a-positive-vision-for-equality-and-human-rights-in-britain.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/686991/20180307_FINAL__Frameworks_analysis_for_publication_on_9_March_2018.pdf


gynnwys achosion lle mae safonau technegol sy'n deillio o gyfraith yr UE yn 

berthnasol. 

O dan bennawd 14 o Atodlen 7 i Ddeddf Llywodraeth Cymru 2006, sef 

'Gweinyddiaeth Gyhoeddus', mae gan y Cynulliad gymhwysedd ar hyn o bryd dros 

"Cyfle cyfartal mewn perthynas ag awdurdodau cyhoeddus cyfle cyfartal", (hynny 

yw, mewn perthynas â phob corff cyhoeddus datganoledig yng Nghymru, a rhai 

cyrff nad ydynt yn cael eu hystyried yn draddodiadol yn rhai datganoledig ond y 

mae Gweinidogion Cymru yn arfer rhai swyddogaethau yn eu cylch). O dan y 

setliad sy'n dod i rym ar 1 Ebrill eleni, mae "Cyfleoedd cyfartal", yn gyffredinol, yn 

fater a gedwir yn ôl. Rydym yn nodi bod eithriadau eithaf eang yn bodoli mewn 

perthynas â'r cymal cadw hwn, ond rydym hefyd yn nodi, yn y cyswllt hwn, y cymal 

cadw eang iawn sy'n bodoli mewn perthynas â chyfraith cyflogaeth. Rydym yn 

gofyn i Lywodraeth Cymru amlinellu ei safbwyntiau ar y materion a ganlyn: 

- pa asesiad y mae wedi'i wneud ynghylch y posibilrwydd o gyflwyno rhyw 

fath o hawl annibynnol i gydraddoldeb yng Nghymru, naill ai yn gyffredinol 

neu o fewn sectorau neu gyd-destunau penodol; 

- cynnig Llywodraeth y DU i sefydlu fframwaith anneddfwriaethol i ymdrin â 

chyfraith triniaeth gyfartal sy'n seiliedig ar gyfraith yr UE ar draws meysydd 

datganoledig a meysydd nad ydynt wedi'u datganoli, a sut y bydd yn mynd 

ati i gynnal trafodaethau â Llywodraeth y DU ar y mater hwnnw. 

Y Bil Masnach 

Mae Cymal 2 o Fil Masnach y DU yn rhoi awdurdod i Weinidogion y DU a 

Gweinidogion Cymru wneud unrhyw reoliadau y maent yn eu hystyried yn briodol 

at ddibenion gweithredu cytundeb masnach ryngwladol, gan gynnwys rheoliadau 

sy'n gwneud darpariaeth ar gyfer addasu deddfwriaeth sylfaenol sy'n gyfraith yr 

UE a gedwir, (er ein bod yn nodi bod Atodlen 1 i'r Bil yn gosod rhai cyfyngiadau ar 

bwerau Gweinidogion Cymru yn hynny o beth). 

Defnyddir y term 'ystyried yn briodol' ym Mil yr Undeb Ewropeaidd (Ymadael)  

hefyd, ac mae'r term hwn wedi cael ei feirniadu am fod yn rhy eang. Yn ei ymateb 

Tudalen y pecyn 72

https://www.liberty-human-rights.org.uk/sites/default/files/Liberty%20-%20Submission%20to%20HC%20PBC%20on%20the%20Trade%20Bill.pdf


i Bwyllgor Bil Cyhoeddus Tŷ'r Cyffredin ar y Bil Masnach, dywedodd Liberty: 

“...retained EU law appears to include a wide range of primary legislation relating 

to various EU mandates, including the Equality Act 2010 and the Modern Slavery 

Act 2015. There are no safeguards to prevent Ministers from using this power to 

erode rights granted by Parliament”.  

O ran y pwerau sydd gan Weinidogion Cymru, rydym yn nodi y byddai'r cam o 

effeithio ar y Deddfau y cyfeirir atynt, neu ddefnyddio eu pwerau o dan y Bil 

Masnach i ddeddfu ym maes chyfle cyfartal neu gaethwasiaeth fodern, mewn 

egwyddor, y tu hwnt i'r pwerau hynny.   Fodd bynnag, rydym yn ffyddiog y bydd 

Llywodraeth Cymru yn defnyddio pob cyfle i ddylanwadu ar Lywodraeth y DU at 

ddibenion peidio â chyfaddawdu ar safonau cydraddoldeb neu hawliau dynol 

mewn unrhyw ffordd wrth gynnal trafodaethau ar gytundebau masnach. 

Rydym yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru, yn ei drafodaethau â Llywodraeth y 

DU, ofyn am ymrwymiad gan Lywodraeth y DU na fydd yn taro unrhyw gytundebau 

masnach y byddai eu gweithredu yn erydu unrhyw ran o'r Ddeddf Cydraddoldeb 

neu'r Ddeddf Caethwasiaeth Fodern. 

Troseddau casineb 

Yn ystod ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau, 

cododd nifer o dystion bryderon ynghylch y cynnydd canfyddedig a gafwyd mewn 

troseddau casineb yn dilyn Refferendwm yr UE. Mae'r Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a 

Hawliau Dynol yn nodi fel a ganlyn: “...in the month following the EU referendum, 

reports show that racist or religious abuse incidents recorded by police in England 

and Wales increased by 41% compared to the previous year.”  

Mae ffigurau a gyhoeddwyd gan y Swyddfa Gartref ym mis Hydref 2017 yn dangos 

bod yr heddlu yn Lloegr a Chymru wedi cofnodi 80,393 o droseddau yn 2016-17 

lle tybiwyd bod un neu fwy o'r elfennau sydd ynghlwm wrth droseddau casineb 

wedi bod yn ffactor ysgogol. Roedd y ffigur hwn yn gynnydd o 29 y cant o'i 

gymharu â'r 62,518 o droseddau casineb a gofnodwyd yn 2015-16, sef y cynnydd 

canrannol mwyaf a welwyd ers i'r gyfres ddechrau yn 2011-12. Dywedodd y 

Tudalen y pecyn 73

http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s59904/HR%2028%20-%20Equality%20and%20Human%20Rights%20Commission.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/652136/hate-crime-1617-hosb1717.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/652136/hate-crime-1617-hosb1717.pdf


Swyddfa Gartref: “...the increase over the last year is thought to reflect both a 

genuine rise in hate crime around the time of the EU referendum and also due to 

ongoing improvements in crime recording by the police.” 

Yn 2014, cyhoeddodd Llywodraeth Cymru y ddogfen, Mynd i’r afael â Throseddau 

a Digwyddiadau Casineb: Fframwaith ar gyfer Gweithredu. Mae'n cynhyrchu 

adroddiadau cynnydd blynyddol ar y mater hwn. Yn ei ymchwiliad i ffoaduriaid a 

cheiswyr lloches, argymhellodd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a 

Chymunedau y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru ddiweddaru ei Gynllun Cydlyniant 

Cymunedol. Roedd y Llywodraeth wedi ymrwymo i ddiweddaru'r Cynllun erbyn 

tymor yr haf 2017, ond nid yw'r ddogfen ddiwygiedig eto wedi'i chyhoeddi. Rydym 

yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru ddiweddaru'r Cynllun Cydlyniant 

Cymunedol cyn tymor yr haf 2018, a hynny er mwyn sicrhau ei fod yn cymryd i 

ystyriaeth y cynnydd a welwyd yn ddiweddar mewn troseddau casineb a'r heriau 

newydd sy'n bodoli o ran cydlyniant cymunedol yng Nghymru. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 74

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/652136/hate-crime-1617-hosb1717.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/equality/140512-hate-crime-framework-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/equality/140512-hate-crime-framework-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/equality-diversity/rightsequality/hate-crime/?skip=1&lang=cy-crime/?lang=en
http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/gen-ld11074/gen-ld11074-w.pdf


Rydym yn gofyn am ymatebion i'r cwestiynau a'r argymhellion hyn erbyn dydd 

Llun 17 Mai. 

Yours sincerely,  

 

John Griffiths AC, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a 

Chymunedau 

 

David Rees AC, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion Allanol a Deddfwriaeth Ychwanegol 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 75



John Griffiths AM 
Chair 
Equality, Local Government and 
Communities Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 

Via email only 

T2.60 
The Scottish Parliament 

Edinburgh 
EH99 1SP 

Tel: 0131-348-5217 

Equalities.humanrights@parliament.scot 

6 April 2018 

Dear John,   

Inquiry into Human Rights and the Scottish Parliament   

Thank you for your letter of 12 December 2017 advising the Committee about 
your inquiry into Human Rights in Wales. Your letter drew our attention to the 
narrowed scope of your inquiry, which is now focusing on the impact of Brexit 
on human rights. 

We note with interest that you have agreed on a set of core principles against 
which the Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee intends to 
adhere to during the Brexit process and against which progress in relation to 
human rights and equality will be monitored: 

• there should no regression in human rights and equality protections as
a result of Brexit;

• Wales should establish a formal mechanism to track future
developments in human rights and equality in the EU to ensure that
Welsh citizens benefit from the same level of protection as EU citizens;
and

• Wales should continue to be a global leader in human rights, and
commit to bringing forward legislation to fill any gaps in rights and
protection if the UK Government does not do so (where possible).

ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 9/ Paper 9 
Oddi wrth: Senedd yr Alban 
From:  Scottish Parliament 

Tudalen y pecyn 76

Eitem 5.3

mailto:SeneddCommunities@assembly.wales
mailto:Equalities.humanrights@parliament.scot


2 
 

In relation to Brexit, we have been keeping a watching brief on its impact on 
equalities and human rights in Scotland and have held three specific evidence 
sessions examining the potential impact. In addition, on 8 and 15 March we 
took evidence on the Scottish Government’s UK Withdrawal from the 
European Union (Legal Continuity) Bill. 
 
Against this background, and with the extension of our remit to include human 
rights, we have embarked on an inquiry into ‘Human Rights and the Scottish 
Parliament’. Our inquiry seeks to examine how the Scottish Parliament could 
enhance its approach to protecting and promoting human rights in Scotland. It 
was launched on 21 January 2018 with a public call for views and the 
responses will be available on our webpage shortly.   
 
Our first evidence session was held on 29 March and we will continue to take 
evidence into May. Our aim is to publish our Report before the summer 
recess. 
 
We would be very interested to hear more about the human rights issues 
faced in Wales and whether these correspond to those in Scotland. Also of 
interest, is what you have discovered through your inquiry and whether there 
is anything we could learn from your new insight into the impact of Brexit on 
human rights in Wales.  
 
If you wished to contribute formally to our inquiry, then we could make 
arrangements for Thursday 10 May. Of course, I recognise the timing might 
be difficult in terms of your Assembly commitments or be contingent on the 
current stage of your Committee’s inquiry, as such you may prefer to submit 
written views to assist us with our inquiry. 
 
I am hopeful we can progress arrangements in the coming months for a 
meeting of the Chairs of counterpart committees of the devolved legislatures 
and the UK Parliament to discuss issues of mutual interest.  
 
Yours sincerely,  
  

  
 
Christina McKelvie 
Convener 
Equalities and Human Rights Committee 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 77

http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/parliamentarybusiness/CurrentCommittees/103934.aspx
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/parliamentarybusiness/CurrentCommittees/101348.aspx
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/parliamentarybusiness/CurrentCommittees/106453.aspx
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/S5_Equal_Opps/Inquiries/Human_Rights_and_the_Scottish_Parliament_inquiry_call_for_evidnece_20180121.pdf


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 78

Eitem 8 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i feichiogrwydd, mamolaeth a gwaith yng Nghymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth 1
	ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 1 - Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol (Saesneg yn unig)
	ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 2 - Maternity Action (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Ymchwiliad i feichiogrwydd, mamolaeth a gwaith yng Nghymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth 2
	ELGC(5)-11-18 Papur 4 - Rhwydwaith Cydraddoldeb Menywod Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)

	4 Ymchwiliad i feichiogrwydd, mamolaeth a gwaith yng Nghymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth 3
	ELGC(5)-11-18 Paper 6 - Slate Legal (Saesneg yn unig)

	5 Papurau i'w nodi
	5.1 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg at Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Addysg ynghylch cyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2018-19.
	5.2 Llythyr at y Prif Weinidog mewn perthynas â hawliau dynol yng Nghymru
	5.3 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol, Senedd yr Alban, mewn perthynas â hawliau dynol yng Nghymru
	8 Trafod llythyr mewn perthynas ag adnoddau ar gyfer craffu ar Brexit



